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NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the members of Yuken india
Limited will be held at Hotel Woodlands (P) Limited, Raja Ram Mohan Roy Road, Bangalore-560025 on Friday,
the 39 September 2010 at 10.00 AM to transact the foliowing business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

URLINAR T BRIl S

1. To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010, the Prc_)ﬂt and Loss Account for

the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend on equity shares. ‘

3. To appoint a Director in place of Capt N 8 Mohan Ram, who retires by rotation, but beihg eligible, offers

himself for re-appointment.
4. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remunetration.

“RESOLVED that M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors be and is hereby re-
appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the

conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board

of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

o Bl AL LA e

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as an ORDINARY

RESOLUTION:
5. Re-appointmentof Whole Time Birector

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 198 and 309 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other
applicable provisions, it any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and subject to the approval of shareholders, approvél
be and is hereby accorded for the re-appeintment of Mr S Yamanoi as whole time Director of the Company with
effect from 1=t April 2010 for a period of 3 years on.contractuai basis, renewable at the end of third year subject
to the term that the gross remuneration including salary and ali other perquisites shall not excoed Bs 2,00,000/

- (Rupees Two Lakhs Only) per month.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any_ﬂnanctal year, the
remunerat'ion payable to the whole time director Mr S vamanoi shall not exceed Rs 200000/- (Rupees Two

Lakhs only} per month which include salary, perquisites and other benefits.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to take all

such actions as may be necessary, desirable (or) expedient to give effect to the above resolution.”

_Td_consider _and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the foilowing resolutions as a

SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

B
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6. Re-appointment of Managing Director:

RESOLVED that subject to the provisions of section 198,269 and 308 of the Companies Act 1956, read with _

Schedule XIil thereto, and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act 1956, or any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, the approval of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded for the re-
appointment of Mr. C P Rangachar as the Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 5 (Five) years
commencing from 1 May 2010 and for payment of following remuneration for first 3 {three) years, that is from
01.05,2010 to 30.04.2013.

1. Salary . In the scale of Rs.350000 — Rs. 600000 with autHority to

Board to fix such annual increment as it deem fit.

2. Commission on Net Profits : As rhay be determined by the Board of Directors subject to
over all remuneration not exceeding 5% of the net profits

of the 6ompany.

3. Perquisites

a) Housing | | : Free F(Jrnishetzf Acporﬁmodation.
b} Gas, Electricity, Water : Actual.
¢} Medical re-imbursement : Seif and Family at Actual
. d} Leave Travel Allowance : Self and Family once a year. Actual reimbursement.
¢) Club Fees : Club Fees subject to a maximum of two clubs.

No Life Membership.

f) Personal Accident Insurance : Self and- Family. Premium not to exceed Rs 8000/ p a.
g} Provident Fund . As per Company’s rules.

h) Superannuation : As per Compaﬁny‘s rules

i) Gratuity ' Hailf month's salary for each completed year of service.
i} Motor Car A . Free use of car with driver

k) Telephone & Fax : Free Telephone & Fax at residence

) Earned Leave : ‘Cne month’é_ Ieaver with full pay and allowances for

every completed 11 months of service.

m) Encashment of Leave . Leave accumulated and not availed of 'during his term as
- Managing Director may be aflowed to be "encashed at the’

end of his term.

=N
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“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the
remuneration payable to the Managing Director shall not exceed the limits prescribed under Schedule XllI, Part

i1, Section i1, 1(B)

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to take all

such actions as may be necessary, desirable (or) expedient to give effect to the above resolution.”

REGISTERED OFFICE:
PB 16, Whitefield Road By arder of the Board
Whitefield )

Bangalore 560 066
C P Rangachar

Managing Director.

Place: Bangalore
Date: 22+ May, 2010
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 173 (2} OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956, IN
" RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE.

ITEMNO: 4.

The members are aware that Mr S Yamanoi was appointed as a whole time director up to the period 31+
March 2610. The Board on the recommendation of Remuneration Committee has re-appointed him for
another period of 3 (Three) years with effect from 13t Aprit 2010, on the terms as indicated in the Resolution.
The proposed remuneration is commensurate with the qualification arid experience of Mr S Yamanoi and as

per current market trend. Hence the Resolution is placed before you which the Board of Directors recommend

for adoption.

_Except Mr S Yamanoi, no other director is interested in the resolution.

ITEMNO: 5

The members are aware that Mr. C P Rangachar has been in charge of overall Management and
Administration of the affairs of the Company since inception. Due to the dedicated services rendered by

Mr. C P Rangachar, the Company has grown from sfrength to strength.

The nﬁembers are also aware that when tﬁe Engineering industry was down with rfecession last year, it
was Mr C P Rangachar, with the guidance of the Board of Directors-and the senior management kept the
momentum going by achieving a respectable performance during the year. The compensation being paid to
Mr. Rangachar is below market levels of compensation. In the context of the company being poised for rapid
growth it is neceésary to extend Mr. Rangachar's services. This will also help Yuken India {0 realize some of
the -major growth plans. It is proposed to re-appoint him for further period of 5 years with effect from

15t May 2010 on remuneration as indicated in the resolution.

Further the remuneration payable to Mr C P Rangachar, Managing Director by wéy of salary, perquisites
and other allowances in any financial year shall not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Company for the

relevant financial year.
None of the Directors except Mr. G P Rangachar is interested in the Resolution,

The information required to be provided under Schedule Xlll, Part Il, Section Il, 1(B) is set out here}n
below:

1. General Information :

1. Nature of Industry : Manufacturing Industry - Qil Hydraulic Equipments.
2. Date of Commencement of Commercial Production: 28/06/1976

3. Incase of New Company ' : Not Applicable.

4. Financial Performance based on given indicators
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(Rs in Lakhs)

Year ended 31% March
2008-09 2007-08

i) Total Reyenues . g , 9,916 10,394
ii) Profit/(Lossl)‘ Before Dep, interest and Tax (PBDIT) 775 1,429
iii) Less Interest 380 262
iv) Proﬁb’(Loss) Before Depreciation and Tax {PBDT} 398 1,167
v} Less Depreciation ‘ 243 207
vi} Profit/(Loss) After Tax (PAT) ° , 65 612
i) Dividend. 0 75
5. Export Performance and net foreirgn exchange collaborations
) FOBValueofSales o 288 145
i Expenditure in FC ’ - 148 98
iii} Value of Import ) : 1,234 1,471

.1)

2)
3)

4

5)

6)

7)

6. Foreign investments or Collaborators, if any: 4

11, Information about the appointee:

0% by Collaborators in the equity of the Company

=)

Background Details: Mr Rangachar is an Electrical Engineer from BITS, Pilani. Had extensive train-

Collaborations.

Past remuneration: 2008-09 Tbtai Gross remuneration drawn Rs.45.43 Lakhs.

Recognition or awards: Cli-Award for Continucus Contribution.

ing in Plastics in Europe, US & Japan. involved in wide range of activities such as Tecﬁno!ogy Transfer and

Job Profile and is suitability: Mr Rangachar continues as the Managing Director righ't from incep-

tion of the Company (ie from the year 1976).
Remuneration proposed: = as indicated in the Notice of AGM.

Comparative Remuneration:

The Company comes under unique segment of Hydraulics and hence the comparative remuneration

' profile with respectto industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and persons are not available

and hence not comparable. However, companies nearly similar to our size are paying its Managerial

persons Rs 5 fakhs to Rs & lakhs per month,

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with the managerial per-

sonnel, if any.

Companies shares.

_.Mr C P Rangachar as an individual member and along with his family is holding less than 1%o0f the

__J
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lIL. Other Information;

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits . : N/A

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement : N/A

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms  : N/A

|V, Disclosures ; _

1. Shareholders of the Company shall be informed of the remuneration package of the managerial
person, - incorporated in the notice.

2. The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Directors’ Report under the heading
“Corporate Governance” attached to the Annual Report. '

- all elements of remuneration package }

- details of fixed component and performance linked incentives. } incorporated

- Service contract, nofice period . ' }

- Stock option details , if any. }

NOTES

1.-A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. The Instrument appointing proxy in.order to be effective should be lodged at the Registered Office of
the Company not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 01/
09/2010 to 03/09/2010 (both days inclusive) for determining the names of members eligible for

' dlwdend on equity shares if declared at the meetlng

4, Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write {o the Company
at least 15 days in advance from the date fixed for the Annual General Meetmg to enable the Manage-
ment to keep the information ready.

5. Members are requested to intimate to the Company any changes if any, in their registered ad-
dresses at an early date.

6. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 173(2) of the Compan:es Act, 1956, relatlng to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

7. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their. copy of Annual Report to the
Meetlng '

8. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered agamst their
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend through ECS.
Incase of any change in the bank particufars, kindly contact the respective deposnory accounts for
effecting the changes. : . '
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9. Under section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or un-

claimed for a period of seven years ‘from the date of payment is required to be transferred to the
investor Education and Proteciion Fund of the Central Government and under Section 205-C of the
Companies Act, 1966, no claim shall lie against the company or the said Fund, in respect of Individual
amount/s which remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of payment,

and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims.

10. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members
at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days between 11.00 am and 1.00 pm upto the

date of the meeting.

Details of Directors seeking appointment /re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

3

Particulars Capt N § Mohan Ram . S Yamanoi.
Date of Birth 10/04/1936 23/10/1949
Date of appointment/ 03/09/2010 - 01/04/2010
! Re-appointment {Re-appointment} {Re-appointment)
Qualifications . B.Tech (Hons) in Naval Architecture from Graduate Engineer
IIT, Kharagpur.k Post graduate in Warship
I Design (UK). MBA (Faculty of Management
Studies), New Delhi.
Expertise in indian Navy, he has designed a number Well versed Hydraulic
of warships and other crafts. Developed Systems Engineer.
| India’s indigenous major warship INS Handled International
Godhavari. He was Head of Divisions in Marketing Department.
Mukhund Group. He is recipient of majer Worked as a Systems
awards such as VKRV Rao Gold Medal Engineer with Yuken
i and Das Gupta Gold Medal for standing in early 1980s.
first in MBA. Vishist Seva Medal for designing :

INS Godhavari from Rashtrapathi. Fellow of
Indian National Academy of Engineering (INAE)

i Directorships held in NIL o : NIL
other public Companies ‘ ' : .

Membership/Chairman
ship of committees of
other public Companies
(only Audit & shareholders/
investor grievance

committee NIL o . NIL
No of shares held in the | NIL _ NIL
Company
& _J
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members, -

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the pen‘ormance of your Company for the year ended 31

March 2010,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Rsin Lakhs)
Particulars 200910 |  2008-09
Total income o B o : 11,632 - 8,916
lTotaI Expenditure - - . L .‘ 10,b6# . 9, 142
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 1,568 775 -
Interest . V i 279 - 380
Depreciation. . - ) _ oo 22 243 - -
Proflt Before Tax ' SR ) l " 1,036 151
Provision for Taxation{Net of deferred tax) B R 343 86
Profit After Tax R - 693 65
‘Appropriations:
Propoeed Divid_e.nd - ) ,‘ - _ ,‘ 75 -
Tax on Proposed Dividend B R -
Transfer to General Reserve . _ ” ' ' 70 -
" REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company .perlormed_ reasonably well, given the very difficult conditione:
I prevailing inthe do'mestic and world markets for the greater part of the year. The Company achieved a turn over'}
"of Rs 11,632 Lakhs compared to Rs 9,916 Lakhs in 2009 The operatlons of the Company for the year. under%

* review have resulted in a net profit of Rs.693 Lakhs.
DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 25 % on the equity shares of the Company for the‘:

year ended 31° March 2010, subject to the approvatl of the members at the ensuing Annuat General Meetlng :
INDUSTRIALHELATIONS

" Employée relations contintie to be cordial. Mutual trust, Buil over decadss of fair-mifidedness and justice;”
fs the bedrock on which the Company continues to build. This augurs well to take on various challenges in

these difficult times.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

nance norms, is part of this Annual Report

(Partlcu!ars of Employment) Rules 1978

Your Company is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. A Report on Cor-

porate Govemance along with a certificate from the statutory auditors on compliance of .Corporate Gover-

Information reqwred under section 217(2A) of the Companies Act 1956 Read with Companies

. Date of com- | . Experience
(including previous

years if any .

sl Desig Gross

Name mencement of
No.

Qualif 'Age
cation

Rermnuneration

nation
: . (Rs}

employment

© Last

-employment

held/
designation/
organization

1 |C P Rangachar Rs.5,553,444) BEME | 67 | 1978.05.01 | 45

Director-
PGI(P) Ltd,

Chennai

2 S Yamanoi Whole Time| Rs.1,763,550| Gradu | 60 " 2009.0401 | a6

Direcitor ate Engi

‘Manager-
Interna
tional

" Dept,

- Yuken
Kogyo.
~Japan

aggregate of not less than Rs 2, 400,000 or.more.
- 2 Annual remuneration as above includes salary, allowances and perquisites.

3. The above appointment is contractual.

neration at a rate, which in aggregate was not !ess than Rs 200,000/~ pm - NIL

DIRECTORS

|
|
|
|
|

share holding in the Company are provided in the notice of AGM.

Director with effect from 1 April 2010.0n contractyal basus,

the notice of AGM.

1. Employment throughout the year under review and were in receipt of remuneration for that year in the

. Employees of the Company who were employed for part of the financial year and in recelpt of remu-

Under section 256(1) of the Companies Act, 1956, and articie 116 of the Articies of the Company, Capt N
S Mohan Ram, Director is liable to retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting. He is eligible and offers
himself for re-appointment. Briet Resume of Directors proposed to be re- appomted nature of their expettise

in specific functional areas, names of Companies in which they hold dlrectorshlps and membersh|p, their

. The Board of Directors have re- -appointed Mr Shigeyoshi Yamanoi for a period of 3 years as a Whole-time '
renewab!e at the end of third year subject to the

approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meetmg Mr S Yamanoi's brief resume is also provided in

)

\
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DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 your Directors confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the accounts for the year ended 31% March 2010, the applicable accounting

standards have been followed.

2. Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the financiat year ended 31 March 2010 and of the profit of the Company for that year,

3. Proper and sufficlent care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for

preventmg and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
4. The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010 have been prepared on a going concern basis.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA), which forms part of this Directors’ Report, sets out an

analysis of business including the industry scenario, performance, financial analysis and risk mitigation,
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

An application has been made under section 212(8) of the Companies Act 1956 to the Ministry of Cbrpdrate
: Affalrs seeking exemption from publishing the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary Companies and the related
detalled information for the year ended March 31, 2010. Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements pursuant to clause 32 to the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges.
The Company will make available the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary Companies and the related detailed
information to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the same. The Annual Accounts
of the subsidiary Companies will also be kept open for inspectien by any investor at the Registerad Office of the
Company and that of the respective subsidiary Companies. The consolidated Financial Statements presented

by the Company include financial results of its' subsidiary Companies,

During the year under review, Your Company has the foi!owing subsidiary Companies viz (i) Coretec
Engineering Indla Pvt Lid, Bangalore (u) Yufiow Englneerlng Pvt. Ltd, Chennai and (i) Prism Hydrauhcs Pvt Ltd,

Belgaum.
. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company recognizes the community as an important stakeholder in, our business and believes in

'sustainability’ as a core parameter of its business strategy.

"The Company prowdes opportunities to Engmeermg and Management Institute students to undergo in-
plant training/projects as part of their academic curriculum, thus enabling to appreciate appiication of theoreti:

cal knowledge and get an exposure to the industrial practices.

10
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The Company’s employees participate in blcod donation camps every year and donate blood.

Employees are trained in ‘First —Aid’ regularly. The Company has rain water harvesting systems in place

covering the entire Factory premises.

The Company’s products and services have very little or marginal impact on the environment and it ad-

heres to all related legal and statutory requirements.
Heaith , Safety & Environment. (HSE}

Health, Safety and environment are high priority issues in your Company.

Your Company conducts annual medical check up for its employees and assists the employees who need
medical attention or counseling. The employees and their dependents are covered under Health Insurance
Scheme.

Awareness workshops on Safety in Industries are being conducted to the employees in collaboration with

the Directorate of Factories and Boilers, Government of Karnataka.

With no reportable injuries during the year, we are cominitted to enhance oc(;upational health and.safety.
Apart from personnel safety, process safety is in the top priority of the Management.'WeIl documented stan-
dards, emphasis on line management responsibility, an improved and standardized process for safetylobser-

vations are helping the manufacturing sites achieve higher employee pérticipation in the safety management.

All manufacturing locations remained fully compliant w_ith Environmental Regulations. High emphasis
was placed on the productive use of raw materials, natural resources, energy and on feducing wastes.- We
believe that a sustainable Organization can be built only with the highest standards of performance on eco-

nomic, social and environmental parameters.
Disclosure of particulars under section 21 7(1 )(e) of the Companies Abt, 1956

_Energy conservation is a consistent focus area for the Company both from a cost control and a social

responsibility perspectigfe. Energy conservation is'a consistent endeavor of your Company. The power factor is

regularly monitored and maintained between 0.99 and 1.00.

. INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 217 (1)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956 READ WITH COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN' THE REPORT.OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES 1988;

1. Conservation of Energy;
The Operations of Your Company are not. ehergy intensive. However, necessary care-is being taken to

conserve energy by various measures.

2. Foreign Exchange Earnings-and outgo
Foreign Exchange Earhings:-

;

Export sales ' ‘ ' ' . ' Rs.20,936,227

Others o 1 Rs.23,778

)

11
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Expenditure in Foreign Currency on account of(on payment basis) -
Interest - : -7 ' Rs.7,511,068
Others ''Rs.6,005,878
Brand Fee e : . Rs.3,558,170

Remittance in Foreign currency on account of:

Dividends _ ] Nil

3. Research and Development (R&D)

The Company continues to invest in R&D activities towards development of new products and applica

tions, improvement in operating efficiencies, and reduction in manufacturing costs.
(a) Spet:ific areas in which R&D carried out by the Combany.
Development of larger size va!ves for process & steel industries rugged vane pumps for special appli

catlons and development of hlgh efficiency gear pumps are some of the areas where R&D was carried

out by the Company
(b) Beneflts-denved as a result of above R & D efforts.. -

Special Products developed to meet specific' requirements of customers, which enable your Company to

develop niche markets for growth.
(¢} Future Plan of action:

Deveiopment of additional range of products. _
» Focus on process improvements to enable the Company o penetrate the Export market
*  Sirong focus on employee mvolvement to ellmlnate waste in Operatlons through focused |n|tiat|ves

(d) Expendtture onR&D.

- There is a continuous increase on R & D .expenditure as the scope - of activities carried out goes on

increasing. The exact amount spent has not been apportioned this year.
4. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation;

(a) Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

*  Special modeis of pumps and valves have been designed to meet specific needs of customers and
these have enabled us to extend our customer base to include-a wider range of industries. -

indligenization is continuous, on going effort.
(b} Benefits derived as a result ot the above efforts.
Reduction of material cost.
+ Quality improvement and improvement in product performance characteristics.

*  Ability to innovate and produce new products.

Noemms
12



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED v YIIKENS

).

f
{c) Information regarding technology imported during the last five years reckoned from the beginning of the

financial year.

i Technology imported o I NIL
i Year of Import _ . L o NJA
ii- Has technology been fully absorbed? ; NA .

iv - If not fully absorbed, areas where this has net taken place, reasons therefor and future plans of action:
N/A -
AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 224 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, be
and are hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conciusron of this meetmg unm

the conclusron of next Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneratron as shall be fixed by the

Board of Directors.”
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks ‘and uncertainties. When used in this
Report, the words “anhcrpate’ “ beheve “eshmate “expect" “intend” , “will” and other similar expressions as
they relate to your Company and /orits bus:ness are mtended to 1dent|fy such forward Iooklng statements Your
Company undertakes no obllga’uon o pub!lc!y update or rewse any forward !ookrng statements whether asa
result of new lnformatlon future events or othennnse Actual results performances or achlevements cou[d dlffer'
materially from those expressed or implied in such forward—lookang statements. This report should be read in

conjunction with the financial statements included herein and notes theretol

. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

“vout Ditectors thank the ciistomers, vendors, financial institutions, banks, Collaborators, and investors for
their continued support. Your-Directors also wish o place on record their appreciation of the contribution made

by all the employees of the Company for their performance in the year under review. = =~ E
-.For and on behalf of the Board" "

R.srinvasan . . .. . V.palaiBnat . . C.P.Rangachar

Director ' Director . Managing Director
- H.M Narasinga Rao
., Chief Financial Officer -

Place : Bangalore
Date: 220 May 2010 =7 =%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

The global economy seems to be .recovering after the recent economic setback. The indian economy,
however, was hit in the latter part of the global -recession and the real economic growth withessed a éharp falt,
followed by lower exports, lower capital outflow and corpérate restructuring. It is expected that the global
economies will continue to sustain in the short-term, as the effect of stimulus programs is yet to bear fruit and
tax cuts are working their way through the system in 2010. Due to the strong position of liquidity in the market,

large Corporations now have access to capital in the corporate credit markets,

After a bad monsoon and its negative impact on the economy last year, investors are hoping that a

normal monsoon this year will lower inflationary expectations and boost economic growth.
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Changing economic and business conditions are creating increasingly competitive market environment
that is driving corperations to transform the manner in which they operate. The index of the industrial produc-
tion showed robust growth against the growth posted in the previous year. The record growth was seen in

consumer god_ds as against negative growth recorded in the previous year.

The Hydrau!ic Industry is a measure of the progress of a nation in terms of industrialization as well as
social development. Obviously, extensive use of sophisticated hydraulics co-refates with a high level of devel-
opmen! Inspired by Yuken, Japan our value system comprises-service to customers; deep sense of respon-

sibility; respect for human beings; qual:ty and frugallty in afl we do.
OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS
OPPORTUNITIES :

. The Company is one of the leading manufacturers and suppliers of power saving Oil Hydraulics with
state of the art, technology, efficiency and reliability. We provide a comprehensive range of hydraulic products,

. services both within and outside India.

. We believe our combetitive strengths which include leadership in solutions that enable our customers to
. optimize the effumency of their business, commitment to superlor quality, long standing client relationships
and competatlve prlcmg Some of the key trends in the Industry that are favorable to the Company to exploit

“these emerging opportunities are, . ' ‘ .

i} Customers are more comfortable in contlnumg to partner with us in view of enhanced quality, re-
duced lead time and competitive prices.
if) Customers are also dqmanding delivery éxcel!ence from distributed business units using uniform
| processes globally to deliver a high quality of service. ‘
In order to leverage these opportunities, the Company has over the years, extended its geographic -

foot print for effectively marketing its offers.
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THREATS:

Some of the key changes in the Industry unfavorable to the Company are,

i} To cater to increasing customer demand with strong technology and domain knowledge, the Company

will have to invest increasingly higher amounts in equipments and facilities.

iy Our business may suffer if we fail to anticipate and develop new products in a fixed time schedule and
enhance the existing products in order to keep pace with rapid changes in technology and in the

industries on which we focus. A strong Engineering base is needed to accomplish this.

iii) There is continuing concems on input cost increases, it may not be possible for the Company to pass

on the cost increase through pricing.

iv) Lack of knowledge in handling SAP aided programs may jeopardize timely generation of reports and

warranting more investment on up gradation.
v) High inventory and receivables may hamper the process of financial planning.
RISKIDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION

The Company assess the risks, priorities them and take necessary action to mitigate the same. Identification

‘of risks is done through focused discussions at various management levels and at the Board Meeting.

The internal E:ontrol systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded:
transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and properly recorded ‘and account-
ing records are adequate for preparation of financial statements and other financial information. The internal
audit function performs internal audit periodically to ascertain their adequacy and effectiveness. The intemal
audit function also carries out Operatioﬁs Review Audits to improve the processes and strengthen .controls of

the existing processes,
‘FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
1956, guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and Generally Accepted Account-
ing Principles (GAP) in India. Our Management accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these |
financial statements, as well as for various estimates and judgments used therein. The éstimates and judg-
ments relating to the financial statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so that the
financiat statements reflect in a true and fair manner the form and substance of transactions, and reasonably

present our state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the year.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Rupees in Lakhs

 Year ending 31st March 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Sales 7045 8510 10296 8702 11,422
Profit before tax 417 699 860 151 1036
Profit before tax to Sales% 592 8.21 9.32 1.55 9
Profit after tax 242 442 612 65 693
Profit after tax to Sales% 3.44 519 5.94 0.67 8
Return on Capital Empl.oyed% 12 18 20 8 24
Return on Net worth% 14 20 23 2 21
Book value per share Rupees 60 73 .87 89 112
Earning per share Rupees 8.07 14.78 20.42 2.17 23.1
Dividend % 18 25 25 0 25

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Company continues to believe in the policy that people are the vital assets. The Company is aware of

its people across the board.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

the present market condition and hence has retention policy in place by considering special packages to the

employees. The Company constantly endeavors to provide a platform for individual opportunities and growth of

Statemnents in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s situation may consti-

differ materially from that either expressed or impfied.

tute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might

=)
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L A A I e e e

Corporate Governance is based on the principles of integrity, fairness, equity, transparency, accountability
and commitrent to values. Good governance practices stem from the culture and mindset of the Organization.
As stake holders across the giobe evince keen interest in the practices and performance of Companies,

Corporate Governance has emerged on the center stage.

OMPANY'S PHIL OSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GUYERNANLE,

The Companys philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of the highest lévels of
transparency, accountablllty and equity in all facets of its Operations, and in all its interactions with its stake
holders, including share holders, employees, lenders, Government and the society at large. The Company

believes that all its actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value on a sus-

tained basis.

As a Company engaged in the business of manufacture of Hydraulic Products for a large variety of end
users, the Company's principal objective is to deliver to its customers, quality products and a pro-active
satisfactory services. The Company complies with the Listing Requirements of the Stock Exchanges where its

shares are listed.

The Company’s policy therefore, envisages the assurance of product quality, transparency, accountability
and integrity in its Operations and in its relation with all stakeholders i.e. customers, suppliers, investors,

employees, the Government and other associates. The details of compliance are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

At the core of our Corporate Governance practice is the Board, which oversees how the management
serves and protects the long-term interests of all the stakeholders of the Company. We believe that an active,
well informed and Independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate Governance. -
Composition

The Board comprises of Executive and Non-Executive Directors who are eminent persons with consider-

able professional experience in various fields. There are two Executive Directors. Mr C P Rangachar, the
Managing Director and Mr § Yamanai, the whole time director. All others are Non-Executive Directors. The Non-
Executive Directors bring independent judgement in the Board deliberations and decisions. During the year,

the Company had a Non- Executive Chairman and more than cone third of the Directors were independent :

Directors.

The Company has not had any pecuniary relationship / transaction with any of the Non-Executive Directors

of the Company.

Attendance of each Director at the Board of Directors meetings during the year and at the iast Annual’
General Meeting , the number of Directorship and Committee Membership held by them in domestic public

companies as at March 31, 2010 are as indicated below:
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Director WhetherPromoter/ | Attendance *LOA Noof Noof Board Chairman/
Executive/Non- particulars outside Committees | Member
Excoutive/ DirectorShip of other of Board
- Independent/ held Companiesin | Committees
Non Independent whicha of other
Board Last member companies in
Meeting | AGM whicha
member
i. Mr. Y Mukaide Non-Executrve - Yes - -
{ Chairman) & NonIndependent
(Collaborator)
2. MY Sakakibara Non-Executive - - Yes - - -
& NonIndependent
(Collaborator)
3. Mr. § Yamanoi Non-Exccutive 5 yes - - - -
& Non Independent
(Collaborator)
4 Mr, R Srinivasan - Non- Executive 5 Yes - 1 3 Chairman
& Independent 4 Member
5. Mr. V Balaji Bhat Non- Executive 5 Yos - 4 2 Chairman
' & Independent ‘ ! Member
6. Capt N § Mchanram Non- Executive 5 yes - - - -
' & Independent .
7. DrPremchander Non- Executive 4 Yes Yes 1 - -
& Independent
8.Mr.CP Rangachar- Exccutive & 5 Yes - 4 1 Member
Managing Director Non Indepdndent
' (Promoter Gronp)
* LOA- Leave of Absence.
& J
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Board Meetings

As per the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors must meet at least four times in a year, with a
maximum time gap of four months between any two meetings.

During the financlal year 20009-10, our Board met five times on 11/04/2009, 20/06/2009, 31/07/2009,
24710/2009, & 23/01/2010.

The information as required under Annexure — 1 A to clause 49 of the listing agreement is being regulaily
placed before the Board.

Board commitiee:

As per the Listing Agreement, no director can be a member of more than ten committees or act as
Chairman of more than five committees across all Companies in which he is a director. None of the directors
of our Company were membetrs in more than ten committees nor acted as Chairman of more than five
committees across all Companies in which they were directors.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company’s Cade of Cenduct as adopted by the Board of Directors, is applicabie to all Directors,
Senior Management and employees of the Company. This code is derived from the principles of good corpo-
rate governance, good corporate citizenship and exemplary personal conduct. The code is available on the
Company’s Corporate Website. All the Board members and senior Management of the Company have af-
firmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31° March, 2010. A certificate to this
effect, duly signed by the Managing Director is annexed thereto.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Board and its constitution is in conformation with the requirements of section
2924 of the Companies Act, 1956 and also in conformation with requirements of Clause 49(11)(A) of the Listing
Agreement. -

The Audit Committee of the Board, inter alia, provides reassurance to the Board of the existence of an
effective internal control environment that ensures:

Efficiency and effectiveness of Operations.
Safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities.
Reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures

+  Compliance with all relevant statutes.

The Audit Committes is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference, inter alia, to:

a) Investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

b} Seek information from any empldyee.

¢) Obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it co.nsiders necessary.

. _ )
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b)

c)

d)-

)

f

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under:

Oversight of the Company’s financial repdrting process and the disclosures of the financial informa
tion to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.
Recommending to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fees
and approval for payment for any other services.
Reviewing, with management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval with particular reference to
- Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of Clause {2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956
- Any changes in accounting policies and practices
- Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by the management
- Significant adjustments made in the financial -statements arising out of audit findings
- Compliances with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements
- Disclosure of any related party transactions

- Qualifications in the draft audit report
Reviewing, with the management, statutory and internal auditors, the adequacy of the internal control
systems,
Reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit functions, ihcluding the structure of the internal audit -
department, approval of the audit plan and its execution and frequency of audit plan.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. .

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there

is a suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systéms of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board. . |

D|scussmn with statutory auditors before the audlt commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as has post—aud:t discussion to ascertam any area of ( concern. '
Reviewing of management letters issued by statutory auditors.

Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies.

Looking into reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositoi's, debenture holders, share
holders (in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors.

Seek assistance from statutory auditors in such areas and in such manner as desired by the audit

Committee from time to time.

m) Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

n)

0)

Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission for approval.

Appointment of Chief Financial Officer {CFQ) after the assessing the qualifications, experience &

background of the candidate.

)
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The role, terms of reference and the authority and powers of the Audit Committee are in conformity with

the requirements of the Companies Act 1956 and of the Listing Agreement.

Though the financial results are sent to the Audit Committee and the Board at the same time, the Audit
Committee reviews the quarterly and yearly financial results and places a report on the same to the Board for

its consideration and approval.

As atthe year end, the Audit Committee comprises of Mr. V Balaji Bhat, Chairman besides Mr. R Srinivasan,
Capt N S Mohanram and Mr. C P Rangachar. While Mr. V Balaji Bhat, Mr. R Srinivasan and Capt N S Mohanram
are Non-Executive & Independent Directors, Mr. G P Rangachar is an Executive Direclor. The Vice President -

Finance and representatives of Internal and Statutory Auditors are invitees to the meeting.

The Compliance Officer functions as Secretary to the Committee.

All the members are financially literate and have relevant finance and/or audit exposure. Mr. V Balaji Bhat

is a financial expen.

During the year, five meetings of the Audit Commiltee were heid, the dates being 11/04/2009, 20/06/2009,
31/07/2009, 24/10/2008 & 23/01/2010. The quorum as required under Clause 49(11)(B) was maintained at all

the meetings.

The composition of the Audit Committee as at 31t March, 2010 and the attendance of the members at
the Audit Committee Meetings are as follows: ' o

Director - . No of Meetings No of Meetings
held during the year attended during the year

Mr. V Balaji Bhat {Chairman)

Mr R Srinivasan

5 5

5 5
CaptN S Mohan Ram 5 5

5 5

Mr. C P Rangachar

The Chairman of the Audit Committee Mr.V Balaji Bhat was present at the Annual General Meeting held
on 26" August 2009,

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee of the Board shall be to discharge the Board's responsi-
bilities relating to the compensation of the Company’s executive directors, non-executive directors and senior
‘management. The Committee has overall responsibility for approving and evaluating the executive directors,

non-executive directors and senicr management compensation plans, policies and programs.

The Company’s remuneration strategy is to attract and to retain high caliber talents. The remuneration

policy, therefore, is market- fead and takes into account the competitive circumstances of business so as to

N
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attract and to retain quality, tafent and leverage performance significantly.

As at the year end, the Remuneration Commitiee comprises of three Non-executive & Independent

Directors, Mr. R Srinivasan as Chairman besides Mr. V Balaji Bhat and Dr. Premchander as members.

During the year, two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held, the dates being 20/06/2009 &
23/01/2010. Both the meetings were attended by Mr R Srinivasan, Mr Balaji Bhat & Dr Premchander.

SHARES TRANSFERS AND INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Shares Transfers and Investors Grievance Committee is authorized te;

1. Monitor the system of share transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation, De-Materialization
and Re-Materialization.

2. Deal with all investor related issues including redressed Complaints from shareholders relating to
transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet etc

3. To delegate such powers to Companies Officers, as may be necessary including powers to approve
transfers, transmissions, authenticate share certificates and to take actions in relation to share

holder related matters.

Mr. S Antony Cruz, functions as the compliance Cfficer of the Company.

The attendance of the members at the Shares Transfers and Investors Grievance Committee Meeting

held during the year is as follows:

Director No of Mestings - No of Meetings
held during the year attended during the year

Mr. R Srinivasan 5 5

Dr Premchander 5 3

Mr. C P Rangachar 5 5

The statistics of shareholders complaints received/redressed dqring the year is furnished below:

Sl no Nature of Complaints Received | Addressed| -Pending
1 Complaints with regard to non-receipt of share certificates 2 2 -
2 Complaints witﬁ regard to non-receipt of Dividend warrant 9 g -
3 Complaints with regard to non—réceipt of Annual Report 2 2 -
4 Others {complaints received through SE/SEBI) 2 2
TOTAL 15 15 -
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary company and hence it is not
mandatory to have an Independent Director on the Board of such subsidiary company. The Audit Committee
reviews the financial statements, particularly, the investments made by the Company's non-listed subsidiary

companies. The minutes of unlisted subsidiary companies have been placed before the Board for their atien-

tion.

The accounts of all subsidiary companies are placed before the Directors of the Company on a regular

basis and the attention of the directors is drawn to all significant transactions and arrangements entered into

by the subsidiary companies.

DISCLOSURES:

(A) Related Party transactions:

{ During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, besides the transactions reported in Note 5 of Schedule 13
to the Financial Statements in the Annual Report, there were no other material related party transactions. These
| transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Further, there are no

material individual transactions that are not in the normal course of business or not on arm’s length basis.
(B) Disclosure of Accounting treatment:

The Company has fo!lowed all relevant Aceounting Standards while preparing the Financial Statements.
{C) Risk Management:

The Company has in place an integrated approach to manage risks inherent in various aspects of our
business. The Company has established procedures to periodically place before the Board the risk
assessment and minimization procedures, being followed by the Company and steps taken by it to miti-

gate these risks:

(D) Proceeds from publie issue, right issue, preferential issue etc:

The Company has not raised any capital during the year ended 31 March, 2010,
(E) Remuneration of Directors

Executive Director:

The Company has during the year paid remuneration to its Managing Director within the limits approved by
the shareholders. The Remuneration Committee met on January 23, 2010 and recommended re-appointment
of Mr C P Rangachar as Managing Director for a period of 5{Five) years with effect from 1 May 2010 and
payment of remuneration for first three years, the salary in the scale of Rs. 350,000 — Rs. 600,000 with authority

te Board to fix the annual increments. Commission is calculated based on the net profits of the Company in a
part|cular financial year and is determmed by the Board of D:rectors on the recommendat:on of the Remunera-

tion Commuttee in the succeedmg financial year, subject to the overall ceiling as stlpulated in Section 198 and

=)
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309 of the Companies Act, 1956. Commission is the only component of remuneration, which is performance-

finked and the other components are fixed, At the same meeting, the Remuneration Committee has recom-
mended re-appointment of Mr 8§ Yamanoi as whole time director for a period of .3 years with effect from 1% April
2010, with gross remuneration including salary and all perquisites not exceeding Rs 2,00,000/- p.m

Commission payable to _Non -~ Executive Directors:

Director Amount payable (Rs.}
Mr. Y Mukaide 185,161

Mr. Y Sakakibara 185,161

Mr. R Srinivasan 185,161

Mr. Balaji Bhat 185,161

Capt N § Mohanram 185,162

Dr Premchander : 185,162

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors for the year 2009-10 *:

(In Rupees)
Description 31ist March 2010
C P Rangachar S Yamanoi

{Managing Director)| (Whole Time Director)

Salary 3,256,011 1,019,736
Contribution to Provident and | = 972.000 113,308
Superannuation Fund ' '
Mor{etary Value of Pérquisite 434,533 830,506
Leave/satary for the year 300,000 -
Commission S 590,000 . -
Total ™ 5,553,444 1,763,550

* excludes charge for gratuity as separate actuarial valuation figures are not available
There are no stock options issued to the Managing Director.

During the year Mr S Yamanoi, was appointed as a whole time director with effect from 1 April 2009,

Non-Executive Directors:

The compensation of the Non-Executive Directors is in the form of sitting fees and commiséion not .
exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company so long as the Company has a whole time Director and / or

Managing Director, as recommended by the remuneration committee and Board of Directors and approved by

\Jthe shareholders. . y
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Sitting Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors were- in receipt of sitting fees of Rs 5625/- per meeting.

Shares
Remuneration { Transfers and Total
Board |Audit Commi- | Committes Investors
Director Meeting| -ttee Mesting Meeting Grievance (Rs)
Committee
Meeting
. 1 Mr. Y Mukaide - - - - -
Mr. Y Sakakibara - - - - -
Mr. R Srinivasan 5 5 2 5 95625
) 1 Mr. V Balaji Bhat 5 5 2 - 67500
: CaptN S Mohanram | 5 5 - . 56250
Dr. Premchander 4 - 2 3 50625
' TOTAL 270000

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold shares or debentures of the Company.

There is no notice period and severance pay. No stock options have been given to any of the directors.

(F) Management Discussion and Analysis :

The management's discussion and analysis report forms part of Annual Report.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION:

The Managing Director belng the Chaef Executlve Officer (CL—'.O) and the Vice President— Frnance being the :

‘ GENERAL BODY MEETING:

Particulars of the past three Annual General Meetings held is furnished below:
Location, date and time of last three Annual General Meetings held:

Chief Financial Officer (CFQO) have certn‘ied to the Board in accordance W|th Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement _:
pertaining to CEQ/CFO certification for the financial year ended March 31,2010, which: is annexed there to.

' l Year Date

Location

- Tirme

2006-07 | 4% September 2007

Hotel Woodlands (P) Ltd,Raja Ram Mohan F{q_y_

Road,Bangalore-560025

~10.00 am

2007-08 | 8 September 2008

Hotel Woodlands (P) Ltd,Raja Ram Mohan Roy

Road,Bangalore-560025

10.00 am

2008-09 | 26™ August 2002

Regd Office:PB16, Whitiefield Road,Whitefield.

Bangalore-560066.

10.00 am
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The Company has passed a special resolution in AGM held on 26" August 2009, appointing Mr S
Yamanoi as a whole time director of the Company for a period of one year with effect from 1% April 2009 on a
remuneration including salary and other perquisites not exceeding Rs 150000/~ per month. Further no spe-
cial resolution has been passed through postal ballot. The Company does not intend to pass any special

resolution this year through postal ballot

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly financial resuits of the Company were sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately after the

Board took the same on record.

The quarterly financial results are being published in the Business Standard (English) and Hosa Digantha

(Kannada) newspapers.
No presentation has been made to Institutional Investors or to the Analysts.

GENERAL SHAREHOL DER INFORMATION:

a). Annual General Meeting: 03/09/2010 at 10.00 am at Hotel Woodlands (P) Limited, Raja Ram Mohan
Roy Road, Bangalore-560025.

b} Financial Calender:

i) Financial Year . April to March
i) First Quarter Results ¢ July

iii) Second Quarter Results  : October

iv) Third Quarter Results : January

v) Results for the year ending : June'
c) Daté_ofﬂngk Closure '_01/09/2_010 to 03f09/201o'_(bcth days inclusive)
d) Proposed Dividend : D 25%
e) Dividend Payment Datg : 06/09/2010
f) Listing on Stock Exchanges | |

iy Bangalore Stock Exchange Limited, Bangalore
it). Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai
fii} Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited, Ahmedabad

The listing fees for the year 2009-10 have been paid 1o the above Stock Exchanges.
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Listing of Shares:

Company’s shares are listed at:

1. Bangalore Stock Exchange Limited (BgSE)
Stock Exchange Towers,
£1, 1* Cross, J C Road,
Bangalore-560027
Scrip Code: 522108

2. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
. Phiroz Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street,

Mumbai-400 001

Scrip Code: 522108

3. Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited, (ASE)
Kamadhenu Complex
Panjra Pole
Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-380015.

Registrar of Share Transfer Agenis:

Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd,
17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar,
Madhapur,

Hyderabad-500 081
Phone: 040 23420815-28

{g) Market Pfigg Data:

Sl. No. Menth High Low
1 April 09 61.00 44.00
> May ‘09 35'.00 50.30
3 June ‘09 83.90 56.70
4 July 09 74.90 50.00
5 © August ‘09 93.25 61.00
6 séﬁterhber 09 09,35 78.00

- High — Low during each month in the year 2009 -10 at Mumbai Stock Exchange is furnished below:
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7 October 09 92.00 72.35
8 November ‘09 109.65 82.15
g December ‘09 130.75 105.00
10 January ‘10 154,90 122.65
11 February ‘10 148.30 126.55
12 March 10 169.95 132.15

The trading in the other Stock Exchanges was negligible during the year ended 31 March 2010.
(h) Share Transfer System

All the transfers received are processed and approved by the Shares Transfers and Investor Grievance

Committee at its meeting.

The Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agent M/s Karvy Computershare Limited, Hyderabad has :
adequate infrastructure to process the share transfers. The Committee meets to approve the transfers etc as
may be required by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. In compliance with the Listing Guidelines, every
six months a Practicing Compény Secretary audits the systerh and a certificate to that effect is issued and the -

same is filed with the Stock Exchanges.
The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, )
The Company had no transfer of shares pending as on 31%t March 2010,

() Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2010:

Sharehelding of Nominal value of Share Holders Share AmoUnt Nominal Value
From To No of cases |% of cases Amount % of Amount” "¢ -
Upto -+ 5000 - - 4167 | 81.22 - 5056050.00 -16.85
5001 - 10000 225 4.94 1794740.00 5.98
10001 - 20000 77| 169 1145200.00 3.82
20001 - 30000 V 34 - 0.75 831650.00 277
30001 - 400(50 13 0.2¢ 458280.00 1.53
40001 - 50000 14 6.31 6666980.00 222
50001 - 100000 .18 0.42 1377830.00 4.59
100001 and ab0ve_ . . 3‘_E8 0.39 ‘1_866‘95‘6.0.00 62.23
TOTAL ‘ 4557 | 100.00 | 30,000,000 | 100.00
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(i) Plant Location / address for correspondence:

The Company’s plant is located at Bangalore, Karnataka,

Address for Communication:

Yuken India Limited,

PB 16, Whitefield Road,

Whitefield,

Bangalore-560066

Kamataka, India,

Telephone: 080 28453810, 28452262
Fax: 080 28452261, 28451560

e-mail: yilinfo @ yukenindia.com

(k) Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2010:

P

Category " NoofShares Percentage of
Held Shareholding

- Promoter's Holding 1,576,282 ' 52.54

Mutual Funds and UT] - : 1,500 0.05

Flis ‘ ’ , 0 0
 Private Corporate Bodies _ 219813 7.33

indian Public 1154268 38.47

NRIS/OCBs . ‘ 47050 1.57

Others 1087 0.04

Grand Total , . 3,000,000 100,00

: {l) Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment

As required under Clause 49(IV)G), particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are

given in the Explanatory Statement and Annexure to the Notice of the Annial General. Meeting to be held on

03/09/2010.

STATUS OF COMPLIANCE OF NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

1. The Board:
No separate office is maintained for Non-Executive Chairman,

The Board has not specifically determined the maximum tenure for Independent directors. They are
liable to retire by rotation as per applicable provisions and if eligible, may be re-appointed at the Annual

General Meeting of the Company.
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2. Remuneration Committee:

Details are given under the heading ‘Remuneration Committee’.

3. Shareholder rights:

The quarterly and annual financial results of the Company are published in leading newspapers and/are
provided to stock exchanges in compliance with the provisions of the Listing Agreement. The complete

annual report is sent to each and every shareholder of the Company.
4, Audit qualifications:

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company's financial statements.
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( CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CECQ) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION.

We, C. P. Rangachar, Chief Executive Officer & the Managing Director and H M Narasinga Rao, Chief
Financial Officer & Vice President-Finance of Yuken India Limited, Bangalore, to the best of our knowledge

and belief, certify that in respect of the Financial year ended on 31*'March,2010 :

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best

of our knowledge and belief,

i) these staterments do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or

contain statements that might be misleading;

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicéble laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company

during the year which are fraudutent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of thé internal control systems of the'Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit corpmittee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or

propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
4, _We have indiqated o the auditors and the audit committee,
i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

i} significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been dis-

closed in the notes to the financial statements; and

i} instances of significant fraud if any, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an employge having a significant role in the Company’s internal

control system for financial reporting.

(HMNARASINGA RAC) . {CPRANGACHAR)

Chief Financial Officer & ' Chief Executive Officer &
VP-Finance. Managing Director.

Place: Bangalore
Date: 22" May, 2010

I

a1




(

"exchanges.

YUKEN INDIA LIMITED ' : -~ YWUKEN

CERTIFICATE

To the Members of Yuken india Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Yuken india Limited for the year -
ended March 31, 2010, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock

&

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management, Our
examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said
clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with-
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state. that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. ‘

" for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
| . (Registration No.0080725)
Place: Bangalore | : 'S. Sundaresan - ‘
Date: July 15,2010 * ‘ : ' Partrer . ' .
{Membership No. 25776)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT -
TO THE MEMBERS OF YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of YUKEN INDIA LIMITED (“‘the Company) as at 31* March,

2010, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that
date, both annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's Manage-

ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

5 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those

Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit'-'includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by the Management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (CARQ) issued by the Cehtral Government

in'terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we give in the Annexure a statement on the

rmatters specified in paragraphs 4 and § of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report that:

{iy we have cbtained alt the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(ii}in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books; )

(iii) the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account; ' ’

" (iv) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit arid Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in compliance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the
Companies Act, 1956; )

{v)in our opinion and to the best of our mformat:on and according to the explanattons given to us, the said
accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

fa) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2010;

() in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(c} in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31% March, 2010 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31°t March, 2010
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 274(1){(g) of the Companies Act, 1956

for DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants

{Registration No 0080278)

S.SUNDARESAN
Place: Bangalore . ‘
- Date: May 22, 2010 Partner .
L - (Membership No. 26776) . S )
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(ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date)

(i} Having regard to the nature of the Company's business/activities/result, clauses (x), (xiii) and {xiv) of

CAROQ are not applicable.

(ii) In respect of its fixed assets:

{a) The Company has maintained prober records showing full particulars, including guantitative de-
tails and situation of the fixed assets.

(b} As explained to us, the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular pregramme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
vetification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explana-
tions given to us, the reconciliation of physical stock with book records is in progress.

{c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute a substantial part of
the fixed assets of the Company and such disposal has, in our opinion, not affected the going
concern status of the Company.

(iii} In respect of its inventory:

(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals.

{b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the Managément were reasonable and adequate in
relation {0 the size of the Company and the nature of its.business. ‘

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

- generally maintained proper records of its inventories. )

(v}  The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/ffrom companies,
firms or other parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

v) In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the
explanations that some of the items purchased are of special nature and suitable alternative sources
are not readily available for obtaining comparable guotations, there is an adequate intermal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its bugihess with regard to
purchases of Inventory and fixed assets and the sale of goods énd services. During the course of
our audit, we have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us thére are no contracts
or arrangements that needed to be entered in the register maintained in pursuance of section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956. : | .

{(vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits within the meaning of Section 58 and Section 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 1956. .

(viii}  In our opinion, the internal audit functions carried out during the year by a firm of Chartered Accoun-
tants appointed by the management have beeh commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business,

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not pre-
scribed the maintenance of cost records for the Company as prescribed under Section 209(1) (d) ofJ
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the Companies Act, 1956, for the products of the Company.

{x) According to the information and explanation's given to.us, in respect of Provident Fund {PF) dues
relating to an international worker, the Company has been legaily advised that PF is payable only on
salaries paid by the Company and not on salaries paid by any other employer outside India. In
respect of other statutory due\s:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues, including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth
Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other matetial statutory dues applicable to it
with the appropriate authorities. '

{b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cus-
tom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2010 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty,

‘ Cess which have not been deposited as on 31* March, 2010 on account of disputes.

{xi}  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of dues to banks. There are no borrowings from financial institutions and debenture holders.

{(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities. ) ‘

{xiiiy  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions.

(xivi In ou.r opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have
been applied for the purposes for which they Were obtained.

(x} Inour opi_nion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the Balance Sheet, we repoit that funds raised on short-term basis have not been
used during the year for long- term invesiment.

{xavi} According to the information and exp!anaﬁons given to us, the Company has not made any prefer-
ential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companixes Act, 1956, ' .

{xvii} According to the information and explanations giﬁen to us the Company has not issued debentures.

(xviii) The Management has not raised any money by public issues in the current year.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. '

. for DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Hegistratiori No.008072S) -
Place: Bangalore ‘

S. SUNDARESAN
~ Date: May 22, 2010 '

Partner
(Membership No. 25776)

=

'35




YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

YOKEN

3 ‘ )
serﬁ?m As at 31/03/2010 As at 31/03/2000
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs
I SOURCES OF FUNDS
1. Shareholders' Funds:
a)Share Capital . 1 30,000,000 30,000,000
b)Reserves and Supius 2 295,588,743 238,000,698
: 328,588,743 268,000,698
2. Lean Funds 3
&) Secured Loans 175,447,506 368,420,060
b) Unsecured Loans 32,500,000 37,500,000
i 207,847,506 405,929,060
3.Deferred Tax Liabllity(Net) 15,906,763 16,991,000
(Refer.ncte 9 of Schedule 138)
Total : - 552,443122 690,920,758
ruwummuurnmm
1. Fixed Assets 4
a) Gross Block 425,354,764 435,874,643
b) Less: Acousmulated Depreciation / Irpainment 187,185,679 166,438,912
: o 238,169,085 269435731
¢) Capital Work in Progress 4,266,398 5,495,744
- 242,435,483 274,931,475
2 Investments '8 22,081,250 21,711,250
3. Current Assets,loans & Advances - 6 :
a) Inventories 164,823,412 179,483,470
b Sundry Debtors 367,370,119 317,929,203
¢) Cash and Bank Balances 23,135,464 21,898,701
d) Loans and Advances STA12,799 65,535,600
’ 612,801,794 585,149,974
Less: Gurrent Liabilities & Provisions 7 )
|‘ a) Liabilities 290,953,258 179,330,115
b} Provisions 33922147 19,225,156
324,875,405 198,556.271
Net Curent Assets 287,926,389 ) 386,594,703
4. Miscellaneous expenciture 8 - 7,683,330
{To the extent not written off or adjusted) ) )
Tolal , 552,443,122 690,920,758
Significant Accounting poficies and Notes on Acocunts 13
The schedukes referred to above forman integral part of the Balance sheet
Tn terims of our repoct attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accowants. :
S.Sundaresan V. Balaji Bhat R. Sririvasan CP-Rangachar .
Partrer ’ Directer Dirgeter " Mamaging Director
Place Bangalare H M Narasings Rao
o , Chief Firancial Officer

Date: 22 May, 2010

i

)
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PROEIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2010 .
SchNe:ule Current Year’ Previous year l
. . Rs . . Rs
Income - a ‘ '
Gross Sales 1,239,328,013 1,090,456,586
Less: Excise Duty 97;143,532 120,227,433
Net Sales 1,142,184,481 970,229,153
COther Income 9 21,003,628 . - 21,404,406
. 1,163,188,109 991,633,559
Expenditure J
Raw Materials, Components and Stores consumed 10 551,029,310 467,576,483
{Increase)/Decreass in Stocks . 11 (2,383,543) 2,929,867
Manufacturing, Administration ,Selling and other Expenses 12 457,728,032 443,666,984
tnterest (Refer note 14 of Schedule 138) 27,921,089 38,011,686
Depreciation/ Amortisation 4 25,243,633 24,552,131
. ’ 1,059,638,531 976,537,151
Profit before tax 103,649,578 | 15,096,408
Provision for Taxation
Current Tax 35,400,000 1,400,000
MAT credit entitiement - - {1,400,000)
Deferred Tax (Refernote 9 of Schedule t38) {1,084,217) 5,600,000
Fringe Benefit Tax : .- ' 3,100,000
Profit aftor tax N ' 69,333,795 i 6,496,408
Add: Surplus brought forward from the previoys year 212,242,863 205,746,455
Amount avallable for appropriation 261,576,658 242,242,863
[d N 5 . . .
General Reserve 7,000,000 .
Proposed Dividend 7,500,000 -
Tax on Dividend 1,245,750 .
Surplus Carried forward ' 265,830,908 T 242,242,863
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share(Face value of equity share of ’ 23.11 " aq7
Rs.i0/- each) ‘ . . o : e
{Refer note 7 of Schedule 13B)
Aggregate number of shares used for . ) R
Computation of Basic & Diluted Earnings per share 3,000,000. ) 3,000,000J
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts . 13 ’ .
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and loss Account
In terms of our report attached N
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells - For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants ! . ) N
§ .Sundaresan V. Balaji Bhat © R, Srinivasan .. C.P.Rangachar:
Parener Director Director  * . ‘Managing Director
. N o -
Place ;Bangalore - ! . i ... . HM Narasinga Rao
Date: 22nd May, 2010 o ' : S " Chief Financial Officer
4
S B I ' L
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2010 31st March 2009
Rs. Rs.
A.Cash flow from operating activitles
Nat profit befare tax 103,649,578 15,096,408
Adiustments for :
-'‘Depreciation! Amertisation 25,243,633 24352131
-Uqrealised Exchange difference (75,002) {1,967,132)
~Loss/(Profit) on sale/serap of Fixed Assets/CWIP (net) 1,772,392 847,958
-Voluntary Retirement Scheme 7,683,328 7,683,335
-Provigion for doubtiut debts (Net) B 2,749,944 {1,124,229)
-Provision for Doubtful advances 2,035,135 .
+Provision for outstanding derivative conlracts written back - {10,994,584)
-Bad debts written off 3492116 4,420,403
-Interest income on margin money deposit and pthers (981,348) (937,906)
-Dividend income (1,325,308) {1,007,500)
-Interest expense - . 27,921,089 38,011,686
Operating profit before working caphal changes 172,165,573 74,380,570
Adjustments for :

(Increase)lDecrease in sundry debtors {56,442,536) 28,085,352
-{IncreaselDecrease in inventories 14,660,058 16,073,686
-{Increase)¥Decrease in loans and advances 6,244,577 {8.300,958)
-Increase/(Decrease) in curent liabilities and provisions 114,579,803 (67,139,372)

Cash generated from operations 251,207,476 53,009,178
«Direct taxes paid (Net) {30,723,058) {17.982,012)
Net cash fromJ/({used in} operating activities (A) 220,454,418 35,117,166
B.Cash flow from Investing activitles
Additions to fixed assets (including capital WIP and Capital advances ) (14,192,081} (55,280,960}
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 19,672,040 1,250,818
Purchase of investments - subsidiary / associate (1,000,000}
Proceeds towards / refund against advance for invesiments - 4,100,000
Dividend received 1,325,308 1,007,500
[nterest received 981,348 937,906 | -
Net cash from/{used [n) investing activitles (8) 7,786,615 {48,984,736)
C.Cash flow from financing activities '
Proceeds from borrowings 131,407,588 264,132,807
Repayment of borrowings (329,929,705} (214,889,048}
Dividends paid (29,126} (7.323,194)
Tax on dividends paid - (1.274,625)
Interest paid {28,446,947) {37,489,582)
Net cash from/{used in} financing activities (C) (226,998,150} . 3,176,358 |
et cash flows during the year{A+B+C) 1,272,843 {10,691,212)
Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance} 21,898,701 32,495,018
Add/(Less): Unrealised exchange {gain)/loss 414,672 509,563
22,313,373 33,004,585
Cash and cash equivalents {closing balance) 23,135,464 21,808,701
Add/{Less): Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss 450,752 414,672
23,586,216 22,313,373
Ingrease f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,272,643 {10,691,212)

=)

SiQnificant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 13

The schedule referred to above form an integral part of the cash flow statement.
Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method* as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on cash flow.

Cash and Cash equivalents include Cash and Bank balances as per Balance Sheet have been considerered as balance with Scheduled Banks on
dividend account Rs. 725,185/ (Rs. 754,311/} and balance in Margm “‘Money deposit account of Rs. 2, 570 200/- (Rs: 2,170,190/-) which are

available for restricted use by the Gompany.

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped / recast, where necessary to oonform 1o the current year classification.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

S. Sundaresan
Partner

Place: Bangaloré
Date: 22nd May, 2010

V. Balgji Bhat
Director

38

For and on behalf of the Board

" €. P. Rangachar
Managing Director

R. Srinivasan
Director

H M Narasinga Rao
Chisf Financial Cfftcer
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANGE SHEET
SHARE CAPITAL i i I SCHEDULE 1
: As at 310372010 As at 31/03/2009
RS. Rs. Bs. Rs.
Authorised

Eal LS Sl

6,008,000 {6,000,000) Equity .
Shares of Rs.10/- each ) 60,000,000 ) 60,000,000

|ssued subscribed and paid up
3,000,000 (3,000,000) Equity Shares of

Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up 30,000,000 ) 30,000,000
Total 30,000,000 30,000,000
RESERVES AND SURPLUS ) ) ] SCHEDULE 2
; . As at 31/3/2010 As at 31/3/2008
. Rs. Rs. fs. Rs.
Genera! Reserve .
As per Last Balance Sheet 25,757,835 25,757,835
Add -Transfer from Protit and Loss Account 7,000,000 | - 32,757,835 : - 25,757,835
Surplus as shown in the Protit and Loss Account 265,831,908 212,242,863
Total 208,568,743 238,000,698
r LOAN FUNDS j | SCHEDULE 3
As at 31/3/2010 As at 31/3/2009
r Rs. Rs. _ Rs. Rs.
a) Secured Loans
r Tetm Loan
From a Bank 125,686,373 161,237,419
{Payabla wilhin one year Rs.125,686,373/{Rs.27.237,41 9/}
From ¢thers ) 2,279,490 o 3,806,026
(Payable within one year Rs.1,371,358/(Rs.1 268,491/) ’
: 127,965,863 165,043,444
# Cash Credit Account - From a Bank 2,140,908 101,054,760
working Capital Demand loan - From a Bank d ~ 45,340,825 . 102,079,755
Under Hire Purchase Scheme - From Others - 251,101
Total<{a} 175,447,596 368,429,060
b) Unsecured Loans
Short Term Loan from a Bank 20,000,000 - : - -
Other Loan from a Bank 12,500,000 37,500,000
{Payable within one year A1 2.500.000!-(!15.25.000.000!-)) - ) .
32,500,000 37,500,009
TotalHb} : i 32,500,000 S 37,500,000
f Grand Total (a+b) ’ : - 207,947,596 - 405,929,080
Secured Loan - Note:
1. Loans from a bank are tully secured by exclusive first charge on the Agsets of the Company.
5. Loan from others are secured by hypothecation of Mator Vehicles.
&, _
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Schedules Forming Part Of Balance Sheet

INVESTMENTS

SCHEDLE §

As at 31132010

As at 31/3/2009

Rs.

Rs,

Uncuoted At Cost-Long Term
Trade ‘

In Subsidiary Companies

1,000,000 (1,000,000) Fully paid ecuity shares of Rs.10/-each of
Yutlow Engineering Pyt Ltd. [ Nt {650,000) equity shares of As. 10~
each purchased during the year.)

480,000 {120,000) Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/- each of
Coretec Engineefing India Pvt Lid. [ 350,000 (ML) equity shares of
Rs.10 each received as bonus shares during the year]

2950 (2,250} Fuly paid exuity shares of R, 100-each of Prism

16,020,000

1,200,000

2,441,250

Hydraulics Pt. Lid

In :
360,000 (360,000} Fully paid ecuity ghares of Rs 10/- each of Sd
India Ltd { 160,000 equity shares o s, 10/- each received as bonus)

shares}

37,000 {Nil) Fully paid exuity shares of Rs. 10/~ of Bourton
Consulting (India) Pvt Ltd

Non Trade
2,000 (2,000) Fully paid equity shares of Rs 25/~ each of The
Sharnrao Vittal Co-operative Bark 11d

|_Tot

16,020,000

1,200,000

2,441,250

19,661,250

2,000,000

370,000

50,000

22,081,250

19,661,

2,000,000

50,000

21,711,250,

TURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

SCIEDULE 8]

As at 31/3/2010

As at 31/3/2009

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

al Inventories

Tools

Raw Materials & Components
Raw Material in Transit

Work in Process .

Finished Goods

5,600,250
94,522,551
3,000,116
38,060,346
23,650,149

9,377,940
108,915,370
1,873,208
39,848,554
15,368,398

179,483,470

b} Sundry Debtors
Unsecured- Dues from subsidiaries

Debts Qutstanding for & Period Exceeding
Six Months - Considered good
Other Debts -Cansidered good

2,562,789

Unsecured-Others

Dabts Outstanding for a Period Excoeding
gix Months - Congidered good
Considered doubtiul

bther Debts -Considered good

2,844,323

51,340,610
5,552,834
56,893,444
310,622,397

Lass: Provision for Doubtful Debts

367,515,841
5,562,834,

(Rofer note 11 and 26 of Schedule 13B)

¢) Cash and Bank balances
Cash On Hand
Balances with Scheduled Banks:
On Curent Account
On Margin Money Deposit Account

On Unclaimed Dividend Account

164,823,412

179,483,470

2,281,335
2,237,774

5,407,112

58,364,731
2,302,889

61,167,620
256,045,363
316,212,983

2,802,880]

361,863,007

367,370,118

19,397,956
2,570,200
725,185

442,123

4,519,109

313,410,004

317,929,203

18,659,342
2,170,190
754,311

314,858

22,693,341

21,583,843

23,135,464

'21,898,701
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a N
Total Brought forward from previous page 23,135,464 21,898,701
d) Leans and Advances

Unsecured and considered good:
Advances recoverable in cash orin kind orfor
value to be received | 27,421,757, 32,096,474
Less: Provision for Doubtful advances 2,035,135 - o
25,386,622 32,056,474
Cue from Subsidiaries 13,517,437 14,816,731
{Refer note 12 of Schedule 13B)
Advance for Investrent 1 570,000
{Shares are yet to be alioted)
Deposit with Excise Authorities 1,673,808 1,497,129
Ceposit Cthers [ 5,451,200] 5,808,445
20,642,445 22,582,305
46,029,067 54,678,779
_INCOME TAX :
Advance Tax (Net) 11,154,197 11,154,197,
FRINGE BENEFIT TAX
Advance Tax {Net} 289,535 5,624
57,472,799 65,838,600
-Tolal 812,801,794 585,149,974
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS f SCHEDULE 7
As at 31/3/2010 As at 31/3/2009 :
. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
2] Current Liabifitieg
Sundry Creditors
Dues to Micro and Smali Enterprises 4,930,698 -
(Refer note 13 of Schedule 13B)
Dues to others 275,816,728 172,400,782
Other statutory Liabilities 7,531,330 5,529,308
Duas to Direciors 1,949,317/ 119,866
Unclaimed Dividend  (Refer note 10 of Scheduls 13B) 725,185 754,311
interest accrued but not due on loans : - 525,848
) 290,953,258 178,330,115
b} Provislons L .
Income Tax (Net) i 12,144,397, 7,183,545
" Fringe Benefit Tax (Net} 304,340 304,340
Gratuity 2,162,096/ 706,009
{eave Salary } 10,565,564 11,031,262
Proposed Dividend 7,500,600 -
Tax on Proposed Divideng 1,245,750 -
33,922,147, 19,225,156
Totai 324,875,405 198,555,271

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

(Ta the extent not written off or adjusted) . SCHEDULE 8
As at 31/3/2010 As at 31/3/2008
' Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Terminatlon Benefils
Volurtary Ratirement Scheme - 7,683,330
Total - 7,683,330
: SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LLOSS ACCOUNT ;
OTHER INCOME . : - - [ [ SCHEDULE ¢
i Current Year Previous Year

. - Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest income on Margin Money Deposit and others
(Tax datucted at source Rs.20,400){Rs. 38,970/ 981,348 937,906

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 88,538

Training and other services rendered 4,788,599 5,449,868

Miscellaneous Receipts 1,930,678 1,002,642

Liabilities no lenger required written back 833,536 ) 643,638

Provisicn for doubtful debts no tonger required written back 1,851,884 1,279,730

Bad debts written off in earlier years realised 126,012 -

Exchange Gain {Net of Loss) 2,171,863 -

Profit on sale of Mobile Hydraulics Business 7,000,000 -

{Refer note 26 of Schedule 138)

Provision for outstanding derivative contracts written back n 10,994,584

Divigend Income 1,325,308 1,007,500

Total 21,003,628 21,404,406
S 2
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Raw Materials, Components and Store consumed

SCHEDULE 10

Current Year

Previous Year

Rs. As. Rs. Rs.
Opening stock 118,293,310 123,401,340
Add: Purchases 532,858,801 462,468,453
Total 651,152,111 585,869,793
Less Closing stock 100,122,801 - 118,293,310
551,029,310 467,576,483
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT :
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCKS ] : ] SCHEDULE 11
Current Year Previous Year
fis. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Opening Stocks:
Finisned Goods 17,109,851 18,984,917
Excise duty on Opering Stock 2,258,547 4,873,673
Work in Process -39,948,554 38,388,228
59,316,952 62,246,819
Closing Stocks:
Finished Goods 20,052,699 17,109,851
Excise duty on Giosing Stock 3,597,450 2,258,547
Work in process 38,050,346 39,948,554
61,700,495 59,316,952
(2,383,543) 2,929,867
MANUFACTURING, ADMINISTRATION, SELLING & OTHER
EXPENSES . SCHEDULE 12
Current Year Previous Year
fs. Rs. Rs. RS.
Salaties, Wages & Bonus (Inciudas provision for Leave Satary
Rs.1,375.61 4/-(Rs.2.817,086/%) 125,490,096 126,244,103
Contribution to Provident Fund and Cther Funds 11,244,952 12,914,080
Gratuity to Employees {Inciuding Rs. 4,549,062/ (Rs. Nil) pernaining
to previous year} 4,956,087 716,136
Staff weltare Expensss 10,687,577 14,470,765
Voluntary Retirement Scheme 7,683,328 7,683,335
Sub-contracting charga$ ' 118,306,281 100,382,606
Power and fual 18,052,022 16,476,773
Rates and Taxes 2,875,265 3,651,335
Excise Duty 591,776 816,845
Exchange Loss (Net of Gain) - 9,897,146
Loss on Fixed Assets scld {net} 914,352 -
Loss ~n Fixed Assels scrapped 858,047 936,496
Rent 6,865,205 6,854,592
insurance 923,809 734,235
Repairs:

Machinery 1,675,989 8,114,306

Building 3,791,023 3,698,341 :

Cthers 1,623,702 16,090,714 661,369 12,494,016
Fraight Transport & Other Charges 28,127,379 25,763,003
Legal and Professional charges 19,158,459 - 17,287,836
Sales Promoticn Expenses 3,458,172 4,013,776
Selling Commission 17,413,491 6,511,720
Travelling Expenses 18,982,477 26,060,886
vehicle Maintenance . 4,717,570 4,874,673
Printing, Stationery,Postage & Telephones 7,695,508 8,992,784
Directors Sitting Fee 270,000 465,000
Commission o Directors other than Managing Director 1,110,968 -
Bad debts and advances written oft 3,492,116 4,420,403
Less: Provision released - 3,492,116 §64,590 3,755,513
Provision for Doubtful Debts 4,601,828 . 820,391
Provision for Doubtiul Advances 2,035,135
Bank charges 5,861,562 7,087,613
Miscellanagus Expanses 15,273,849 23,761,120
{f3efer nota 15 of Scehedule t3B) :

) 457,728,032 443,666,984
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Schedule 13

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts for thé year ended 31st March 2010

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual concept of accounting under the Historical
Cost Convention in accordance with the generaily accepted accounting principles and comply with the man-
datory Accounting Standards in accordance with the relevant provisions of The Companies Act, 1956.

2. FIXEDASSETS
Tar_ngible Assets

a) Fixed Assets are capitalised at cost inclusive of taxes, incidental expenses on freight, installation etc.
and interest on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition of fixed assets for the period upto the date
such asset is put to use. .

b) Fixed Assets taken on financial lease prior to April 11,2001 sre not capitalised and lease rentals are
absorbed in the Profit and Loss Account without reference to useful life of the asset, while assets
acquired under Hire Purchase are capitalised.

¢) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided at the rates specified in Schedule X1V of the Companies Act
1956, under Straight Line Method. Depreciation on additions during the year is on pro-rata basis,
based on the date the assets are put to use. Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated

during the year.
intangiblg Assets

a) Technical Know how fee is amortized over a period of 6 years on pro-rata basis,
b) Cost of License and Implementation of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software is amortized
_over the estimated useful life of 5 years,

¢} Expenses incurred on research and developments are charged to revenue in the same year. Fixed
assets purchases for research and development purposes are ¢apitalized and depreciated as per

the Company’s policy.”
Impairment 4 ‘ ,

Consideration is given at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment of the carryin§ amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If any indication exists, an imbairmenl

loss is recognized when the carrying amount exceeds greater of net selling price and value in use.

3.. INME§TMENTS

investments which are long term in nature are stated at cost, and prowsaon for dlmlnutlon in value is

made to recognize a loss, other than temporary, in the value of mvestments

)
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4. |NVENTORIES

inventories are valued as foltows

-

(i) a) Raw Materials & Components } At lower of cost on Moving Weighted Average

1

’ value and net realizable value

(i) a)Material in transit . . } At lower of cost and net realizable vaiue
b) Work in Process ~

(i) Finished Goods ™ At lower of cost and net realizable value

(iv) Tools At lower of cost and net realizable value

(* Cost includes cost of material, direct labour and other applicable overheads).

5. CASHFLOW

r Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Accounting Stan

dard =3 on Cash Flow Statements.

rFUpERNLURRGINA T LTI A e

6. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION

Transactions in Foreign Currency are accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of Transaction,
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and forward exchange contracts outstanding as at the
| end of the year are re-stated at year end rates. The loss or gain arising on restatement / settlement is

adjusted to the Profit and Loss account.

in case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium paid on
forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Non monetary foreign currency items are

carried at cost.
EMPLOYEE SENEFIIS

Short Term Employee Benefits

r 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
T Short term employee benefits including accumulated compensated absences determined as pet
i .

Company's policy/scheme are recognized as expenses based on expected cbligation on undiscounted

basis.

r Long Term Employee Benefits:

" Defined Contribution Plans

————

The Company has Defined Contribution plans for post _emp!oymen% beﬁefits namely Provident Fund and
t - Superannuation Fund. Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government
administered provident fund on behalf of its employees and has rio further obligation beyond making

its contribution.

. ' . 45




-
The Superannuation Fund constitutes an insured benefit, which is classified as a defined contribution

plan as the Company makes contributions to an insurance company and has no further obligation beyond

making the payment to the insurance company.

The Company makes contributions te state plans namely Employee's State insurance Fund and

Employee’s Pension Scheme, 1995 and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them.
The Company’s contributions to the above funds are charged to revenue every year.

Defined Benefit Plan

- The Company has a Defined Benefit plan name'iy Gratuity for all jts employees. The liability for the

“defined benefit plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the year end.

Gratuity Fund is recognized by the income tax authorities and is administered through trustees. The

. Company has taken a group gratuity policy with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited and is funded.

Provision for long term compensated absence has been made on the basis of an actuarial valuation at

the year end.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial

assumptions are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account as income or expense.

Termination Benefits:

Compensation paid / payable to employees who have opted for retirement under the Voluntary Retire-
_ment Scheme (VRS) of the Company is amortized over a.period of 36 months or up to the financial year

ending 31¢ March, 2011, whichever is earlier.
8. REVENUERECOGNITION

Sales are recognizéd on dispatch of goods when significant risks and rewards of ownership are consid

sales turnover of the year. Sales are inclusive of excise duty and are net of Sales Tax.

Revenue from Hydraulic Training programme is recégnised oh completion of the Training program.
9. BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs other than that attributable to a qualifying asset are expensed as and when incurred.
_ 10. LEASES

Lease rentals.on assets undef‘loperating Eeasg are charged off to the Profit and Loss account for the year.
“11. INCOME TAX
‘Current Tax :

Current tax expense is determined in acco_rdénce with the provisions of the Income - tax Act, 1961,

Minimum alterate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax IaWs, which gives rise to futu;e economic

YUKEN INDIA LIMITED : " YUKEN

ered to be transferred. Sales returns are recognised as and when ascertained and are reduced from the

™)
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( benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
r convincing evidence that the Company will pay norma income tax. -
Deferred Tax :
|
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rate which have been enacted or substan
tively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized, on timing
| differences being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one
period and are capable of reversing in one or more subsequent periods.
‘ Deferred tax assets are recognized only to ihe extent that there is a reasonable certainty of their realiza-
tion. Where there is unabsorbed depreciation‘ or carried forward losses, deferred tax assetis recognized
r only if there is virtual certainty of realization of such asset. o
r 12. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past avent, it is
f probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,.in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
f based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed
f at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financia! statements. '
13. PRIOR PERIOD AND EXTRACRDINABRYITEMS
Prior petiod and extracrdinary items, and changes in accounting policies, having a material impact on
the financial affairs of the Company are disclosed separately.
B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of
advances Rs. 1,609,838/ (Rs. 986,327/-).) and not provided for is Rs.1,509,196/- (Rs. 1,871,791/}
2. Investments addition's f (deletion) for the year
Amount in Rs.
Description ‘ 317 March 2010 | 31* March 2009
" Subsidiaries
yutlow Engineering Private Limited. - 6,500,000
Others
Bourton Consulting (India) Pvt Ltd : 370,000/~ '_ .
e o __4
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3.

FOI'EEQI"I Currency Exposure

a} Forward Exchange Contracts, which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes, but for

hedge purposes, to establish the amount of reporting currency required or available at the settlement’

date of certain payables and receivables, outstanding as at the year end are given below;

No of Nature of Amount Cross Amount {Rs)
Contracts Hedge Currency (USD) Currency
Buy/ Sell ‘ '
1 Buy - usb 3,470,000 Rupees 156,382,900
(1) Buy usD (2,000,000} .Rupees (101,300,300)
1 Buy UsD 172,616 Rupees 7,779,760
{-) Buy ° usD (228,893) Rupees (11,593,430)

b} Foreign Currency Exposure, that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or other wise:

Particulars Amount Amount
{Foreign Currency)
Due From
Rs.5,315,807 USD 121,573

- Debtors against Export of Goods

(Rs.8,271,808) -

(USD 163,378) -

Rs. 12,604

- |(Rs. 2,718,843}

GBP 188

|, (GBP 36,821)

Rs.1,270,105
{Rs.1,993,284)

E_uro 20,880
(Euro 29,027)

(Rs.899,066)

{Yen 1 ,fSé,QQO)

Dueto.

a) Secured loan

{ Rs. 14,038,571}

(USD 277,168)

b) interest on Secured Loan Rs.896,169 UsSD 19,661
' (Rs.779,775) {(USD 15,395}
¢) Creditors against 'Import of goods and services Rs. 38,469,260 USD 853,545

(inclusive for Capital goods)

(Rs.14,218,265)

(USD 280,716)

YEN 11,933,300

Rs.5,803,164
(Rs.587,186) " |(YEN 1,134,440) -
Rs 538,083 EURO 8,903
(Rs.91,911) (EURO 1,338)
(Rs 87,1486) (SGD 2,596)
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4. Employee Benefits )
The company has classified various benefits provided to employees as under :-
| Defined Contribution Plans . '
a. Provident Fund
b. Superannuation Fund
c. State Defined Contribution Plans
i. Employers’ Cbntribution to Employee’'s State lnsuranée
ii Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme, 1995.
The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Profit and Loss Account-
AmountinRs.
besc’rlption ~ 31% March 2010 . a1+ March 2009
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund” 3,935,196 4,307,336
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund® 4,290,671 5,029,590.
Employers’ Contrlbutlon to Employee’s State Insurance” 398,434 545,364
Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme 1995 2,026,961 2,422,661
* lncluded in Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Schedule 12}
i Defined Benefit Plan |
a) Contribution to Gratuity Fund |
in accordance with Accounting Standard 15, actuatial valuation has been carned Gut at Projected Unit Credit
method in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan of Gratulty based on the following assumptions :
Description 315t March 2010] 31t March 2009
Discount Rate 8.15% p.a 7.30% p.a
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.50% pa 7.50% p-a..
Salary Escalation Rate - 5.00% p. a. 5.00% p.a.
Ekpected Average remaining working lives- of the employees (Years) 10.88 _11.69
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuatial valuation, take account of inflation, se-
niority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

A) Changein Present Value of Obligation :- Amount inBs.
1 pescription o 21 March 2010| 31 March 2009
Opening Present Value of Ong_atio_rl 11,761,680 15,108,152
~ Current Service Cost ‘ " 1,076,636 , 918,127
oot on Defmed Benefit Obligation______ 912,143 1,286,471
Benefits Paid ] (5,606,597) (3,831,707)

Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) Recognized in Year 3 867,705 {1,721 ,37'63)
Past Service Cost - ' -
Losses / (Gaing) on “Curtaifments & :ememems . - -
Closing Present Value of Obligations 12,011,567 11,761,680
N _—
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rB) Change in the Fair Value of Assets
AmountinRs.
Description 31* March 2010) 31¢ March 2009
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assels 11,055,671 - 12,968,271
Expected Return on Plan Assets 870,835 1,017,431
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) 29,482 (1,248,332)
Assets Distributed on Settiements - -
Contributions by Employer 3,600,000 2,150,008
Assets Acquired due to Acquisition - -
Exchange Difference on Foreign Pians - -
Benefits Paid (5.608,597) (3,831,707)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 9,849,471 11,055,671
C) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fajr Value of plan assets
Amount in Rs.
Description 31* March 2010 | 31° March 2009
Clos_inq Present Value of Funded Obliqations (12,011,'567) (11,761,680
Closing Fair Vailue of Plan Assets 9,849,471 11,055,671
| Closing Value of Unfunded QObligations {2,162,096) {706,009)
[ Unrecognized Actuarial {gains) / losses - - ' -
Unfunded Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (2,162,096) {706,009)
D) Ex ense recognized in the Profit and Loss Account
‘ Amount in Rs.
Description 31* March 2010} 3t* March 2009
. Current Service Cost 1,076,636 918,127
Past Service Cost - -
_Interest Cost 912,143 - 1,288,471
Expected Return on Plan Assets (870,935) {1,017.431)
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) _ 3,838,243 (473,031)
Losses / (Gains) on “Curtailments & Settlements” - -
Tota_i’ Expense' recognized in the Profit & Loss Account 4,956,087 716,136
E) Major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of total Plan Assets
 Description 31¢ March 2010 | 31 March 2009
Corporate Bonds 50% 50%
'Equity Shares of listed Companies’ 50% 50%
& W

-\ .
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fﬁa) L eave Salary

Assumptions at the Valuation Date:

The estimates of future salary increase

I | -Description 31+ March 2010| 31" March 2009
Discount Rate N 8.15% p.a. 7.30% p.a.
i Salary Escalation Rate . 5.00% p.a. - 5.00% p.a.

s, considered in actuariai valuation, take account of inflation, se-

i . niority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amountin Rs.

S

| Description _ 31# March 2010| 31% March 2009
Charge in the Profit & Loss account 1,375,614 2,817,085
Amount paid during the year 1,841,312 3,076,151
Liability as at year end . 10,565,564 11,031,262

_A.
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6. Leases

a) The Company has entered into various hire purchase transactions for the acquisition of vehicles.

Total minimum hire purchase payments as at the balance sheet date amounted
(-Rs 251,101/-) (excluding interest). The total of minimum fease payments and their present value

outstanding .at the balance sheet date are as below:

to Rs. Nil

AmountinRs. '

Total Minimum Present Value
hire purchase of Minimum
Due Interest .
' Payments ‘ hire purchase
! outstanding Payments
as at March 31, 2010
Within one year from the - - -
date of the Balance Sheet {253,694) {2,593) {251,101}
"Dueina period between one year - - ‘ -
and five years - - (-
Due after five years X - - -
- () ) )
Total - - -
o (253,694) (2,593) {251,101)

b) The Company has entered into lease agreements for vehicles and office facilities which are cancel
fable. The lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss account for the year against -
these agreements is Rs.5,202,463/- (Rs.5,652,526/-) which has been grouped under ‘Rent’ under

Schedule-12. There are no contingent rents payable.

Ea'rn_ing Per Share

Amountin Rs.

31* March 2010 31% March 2009
Profit after taxation (A) 69,333,795 6,496,408
Weighted number of Equity shares (B) 3,000,000 3,000,000
Face Value of Share Rs.10 ‘Rs.10
Basic & Diluted Eamings Per Share { (A/B) Re. 23.11 Rs.2.17

8.

‘Seq ment Report: .

The c'ombany's predominant risks and returns are from the segment of Motion, Control & power transmis-

sion business, which constituted over 95% of the companys revenues for the reportsng period. Thus the "
segment revenue, segment resuft total carrying amount of segment assets total amount of segment fiabilities, '
total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, the total amount of expense incurred for depreciation and .

54



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED 3 ' YUKEN
e 1

amortization during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201 0
and as on that date. Since this being a single business and India the only major geographical segment
constituting over 95% of the company’s revenues for the reporing period, the segment information as per

Accounting Standard 17, “Segment Reporting”, is not required to be disclosed.

9. Deferred Tax

Tax provision has been made in accordance with the requirements under the Accounting Standard 22
“Accounting for Taxes on Income™ as detailed below: '

Amount in Rs.

Description Deferred tax {(asset) |Current year Deferred tax (asset)
‘ Niability as at charge / (credit) | / liability as at

_ . 01.04.09 o 31.03.10

" Depreciation: book o tax difference 27,875,877 (2,423,918) 25,451,959
Provision for employee benefits | = (3,152,302} (960,959) (4,113,261)
Provision for Doubtful debts and (952,702) {1,499,540) (2,452,242)
advances o . . ‘ ‘
Unabsorbed Depreciation {4,690,620) . 4,690,620 -
Miscellaneous Expenditure {2,089,253) . {890,420} | -(2,979,673)
(Voluntary Retirement Scheme) :
Net : o 16,991,000 . | (1,084,217) 15,906,783

10. Unclaimed Dividend

The unclaimed dividend of Rs.725,185/- (Rs.754,311/-) represents Rs.59, 078/- relating to the year i
2003 Rs.63,435/-, relating to the year 2004, Rs.96,610/- relating to the year 2005, Rs. 123,159/- relating to the
year 2006, Rs.180,565/- relating to the year 2007 and Rs. 202, 348/- relating to the year 2008. No part thereof
has remamed unpaid or uncla:med for a period of seven years from the date they became due for-payment

requiring a transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

11. ‘Companies under the same management

Sundry debtors include dues from companies under the same management as defined under section

370(1-B) of the Companies Act, 1956 as follows.

Description o | 31+ March 2010 | 31* March 2009

) - e ' Rs. o Rs.
Coretec Engineering Indta anate Limited - 2,850,954 2,787,251
Pnsm Hydrautlcs anate Ltmlted o 1,673,668 . '1,680,858
Yuflow Englneenng Private lelted _ . 882,490 . ‘ 51,600 '
Bourton Consulting (India) Pvt Ltd. SR - Cgas7Al | .

565

aia



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

- YUKEN

X
( 12. Loans and advances include dues from companies under the same management as defined under
section 370(1 ~B) of the Companies Act, 1956 as follows:
\ Amount in Rs.
Advance to Subsidiaries 31* March 2010 | 31 March 2009
" Sriplas Engineering India Private Limited . ‘ il '3,'056,786
Maximum amount outstanding during the year. . Nit 5,939,549
Yuflow Engineering Private Limited 10,989,621 8,876,420
Maximum armount outstanding during the year 16,259,083 9,010,498
Prism Hydraulics Private Limited 2,627,816 2,883,525
Maximum amount outstanding during the year ) 2,886,138 3,160,128
13. Dues to micro enterprises and small ehterprises :
Description 31t March 2010 | 31 March 2009
. Rs : Rs
- Principal amount unpaid 4,930,698 -
Interest due thereon 70,499 -

a) Nointerest payments have been made during thé_ year.

b) The above inform;';ltion and that given in “Current Liabilities" in Schedule -7 reg'arding dués to Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterpﬁses has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This Has been relied upon by the .auditors

14. interest exg' ense comprises of :
- . Amount if Rs.
.Désdripfion 31+ March 2010 | '31* March 2009
On Fixed loans 18,841,641 22,747,744
On others 9,079,458 . 15,263,942
Total 27,921,099 38,011,686
15. Miscellaneous Expenses include
Auditors F{emun'eratibn{ _ Amount in Rs.
| Description | 31% March 2010 | 31 March 2009°
Audit fees ' 500,000 5,00,000
Tax Audit/ Tax Matters © 300,000 2,50,000
For Certification / Attestation Work 200,000 2,00,000
Qut of Pocket Expenses and Service Tax 7,722 |- 129,264
Total ‘ 1,117,722 | 1,079,264
y
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ies Act, 1956 .

'16. Computation of Net Profit under section 309 (5) of the Compan .

.Amount in Rs.

- Description 31 March 2010 [ 31 March 2009
Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 103,649,578 15,096,408
Hemuneration to Whole time Directors 7,316,994 4,543,347
Commission to Directors other than Whole time Directors 1,110,968 -
Directors Sitting Fees 270,000 465,000
Loss on Fixed Asset sold (net) 914,352 936,496
Provision for doubtful debts (Net of reversal of Rs.1,851,884) 2,749,944 -
Provision for doubiful advances 2,035,135
Wealth Tax 49,830

Total 118,096,801 21,041,251
Less: Profit on sale of asset - 88,538
Less: Income on Sale of Mobile Hydraulics Business 7,000,000 -
Less: Provision for outstanding derivative contracts written back - 10,994,584
Net Profit 111,096,801 9,958,129

Restricted to ; '
10% of Net Profit for Whole Time Directors 11,109,680 -
1% of Net Profit for Directors other than Whole Time Directors 1,110,868 -

*Remuneration excludes charge for gratuity as separate actuarial valuation figures are not available.

17. _Remuneration to the Whole Time Directors
Amount in Rs,
Description 31% March 2010 31* March 2009
Managing Whole Time - Managing Whole Time
Director Director Director Director
Salary 3,256,911 1,019,736 3,114,025 -
Contribution to Provident and 972,000 113,308 . 958,500 -
Superannuation Fund '
Monetary Value of Perquisite 434,533 - 630,506 470,822 -
{ eave salary for the year 300,000
Commission _ 590,000 ! . :
Total * 5,553,444 1,763,550 4,543,347 -

*Remuneration excludes charge for gratuity as separate actuarial valuation figures are not available.

B
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18, Particulars in respect of goods manufactured:
Class of Goods Unit of Licensed installed Total
Qty . Capacity Capacity Production
1 Hydraufic pumps, valves, Nos. NA 294,600@ 263,957
Accumulators, Cylinders, (294,600)@ (267,691}
power units and Others.
2 Cast Iron Castings and MT NA 1200 @ s 1132
Alloyed lron Castings (1200)@ (1,256)**
@ a) As certified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors being technical matter.
b} Power units are manufac!ured,ag:—iinst‘specific customer orders. :
~** Including 876 MT (699 M.T) for own consumption.
19, Particulars in respect of Stocks and Sales of Finished Products
Class of Goods |Unit Opening Stock Closing Stock Sales
Qty ValueinRs | Qty Value in Rs Qty Value in Rs
1| Hydraulic
Pumps; ]
Valves,
| Accumulators
Cylinders, -
Power Units No 7,273 19,116,009 8042 23,617,222 263,188 | 1219005700
.| And Others (9,224) | (23,858,590) | (7,278) | (19,116,009) .| (269,642) | (104095210
2| Cast tron | S ' ‘ o S
Castings and
Alloyed iron . .
Castings MT, 4 . 252,389 0.200 32,927 '259.80 | 20,322,313
S { -) {-) 4 | (252,389) (553.00) | (49,531,376).
* . Net of sale retums Rs.25,630,156/- (Rs. 31,335,231/-)
Closing stock includes- Excise Duty of Rs. 3,597,450/- (Rs. 2,258,547/},
20. Raw Materials and Comgonen{s and Stores consu ed :
' : | Unitof Gty Qty ValueRs
) | Steel lems KG 300,422 23,484,184
. (272,340) (26,332,157}
i} Castings KG - 1,108,337 49,635,024
, ' _ (951,864) (52,730,361).
i) Imported Raw materials and ° - - 178,369,206
: Components (numerous to list) (121,106,604)
_iv} Others(riumerous to list) - - 287,228,070
- ‘ (244,947,704)
' v) Consumable Stores & Spares . - 12,317,826
' (22,459,657}
Total 551,029,310
' ( 467,576,483)
L ‘
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21, Composition of Raw Materials, Components and Stores consumed :
Imported !ndigenoué Total Rs.
Rs. Percentage Rs. Percentage hs. Percentage
Raw Materials 178,369,208 33 360,342,278 67 538,711,484 100
And components | (121,106804)|  (27) (324,010,222) (73) (445,116,826) (100)
Consumable - d - 12,317,826 | 100 12,317,826 100
Stores arxl Spares (-} -) {22,459,857) (100} (22,459,657) (100}

22, Value of Imports CGalculated on CIF basis:

315t March 2009

Capital Goods

Description 31% March 2010
Rs. Rs.
Raw Materials and Components 156,185,098 | 121,079,179
228,657 2,314,072

23. Expenditurein Foreig'n Currency on account of : (On Payment basis):

Description 31¢t March 2010 | 31 March 2009
Rs. Rs.
_Brand Fee 3,558,170 -
" Interest 7,511,068 8,145,116
Others 6,005,878 6,690,803

24. Remiftances in foreign currencies on. account of dividends :

Description ' 31% March 2010 | 31* March 2009

Number of Non-resident shareholders 1 i .
Number of equity shares on which dividend paid - 1,200,000
Dividend paid (Rs.) - 3,000,000
Year to which the dividend relates - 2007-08

25, Earning in Foreign Currency (On Realisation Basis) :

31¢ March 2010

31 March 2009

Export Sales

Description
Rs. Rs.
Hydraulic Training 23,778 209,806
20,936,227 25,741,248

26. Sale of mobile Hydraulics business:

The Company has entered into a shareholders’ agreement dated January 20, 2010 with a party, for sale of its
* mobile Iiydrau]ics business. As a consideration for this transfer the company would be receiving a total amount of

w
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' Rs. 9,413,300, cut of which Rs. 7,000,000 i# towards transfer of Know-how;, IP rights, customer/vendor contracts

' etc. (goodwill) and balance of Rs. 2,413,300 towards book value of fixed assets sold. The total purchase consid-
eration receivable has been shown under “Sundry Debtors” in Schedule 6 and the amount receivable towards
goodwill has been shown under “Miscelianeous Income” in Schedule 9 of the financial statements. This amount

of receivable shall be settled by way of allotment of 941,330 shares at par value of Rs. 10/- each.

The mobile Hydraulics business does not constitute a major line of business of the Company.
- 27.Figures relating to previous year have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year
classification. Figures in brackets relate to previous year.

SIGNATURES TO SCHEDULES 1TO 13

For and on behalf of the Board

R Srinivasan V Balaji Bhat C. P. Rangachar
Director Director Managing Director
Place : Bangalore : : . H M Narasinga Rao
Date : 22" May 2010 e Chief Financial Officer
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C.. BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACTANDC ANY’
GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE:

J 1. Registration No : State Code :

Balance Sheet date 31/03/2010

II. Capital raised during the year:

Public issue - Nil
Bonus Issue - Nil '
Rights Issue . | - Nit
Private Placementu - Nil
e Pgéitioh of Mobilisation and Deploymenf of funds : (Rs in Lakhs)
Total Liabiljties : . 5,525
Total Assets . ' 5,525

Source of Funds

Paid up Capital 300
Reserves & Surplus 2,986
Deferred Tax Liability 159
Secured Loans ' 1,755
Unsecured Loans 325
Apglic_ati'oﬁ of Funds
Net Fixed Assets 2,424
.Net Current Assets | 2,880
Investments | ' 221
v Performance of Company (Rs in lakhs)
Turnover . 7 11,832
Total Exﬁen_diture . 10,596
Profit Before Tax . : ' 1,036
* Profit After Tax 693
Earning per Share in Rs. : 23.11
Dividend (Including Dividend Tax) 87
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V. Generic Name of Three Principal Products/Services of Company ( as per Monetary Terms):

Item Code No (ITC Code)

Product Deécription

84812000

Hydraulic Valves

ltem Code No (ITC Code)

Product Description

84131199
Hydraulic Pumps

Item Code No (ITC Code)

Product Description

84122990

Hydraulic Systems

R Srinivasan

Director

Place; Bangalore

Date : 22™ May, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board

V Balaji Bhat - C.P.Rangachar

Director ‘ X Managing Director

HM Na'rasinga Rao

Chief Financial Officer
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of YUKEN INDIA LIMITED
{“the Company”} and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries constitute “the Group”} as at
31st March, 2010, the Consclidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
of the Group for the year ended on that date, both annexed thereto. The Consolidated Financial Statements
include investments in associates accounted on the equity method in accordance with Accounting
Standard 23 (Accounting for investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements) as notified
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. These financial statements are the
responsibifity of the Company’s Management and have been prepared on the basis of the separate
financiat statements and other information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by the Management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

. {a) We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total

assets of Rs. 98,544,455 as at 31 March, 2010, total revenues of Rs. 65,766,832 and net cash
outflows amounting to Rs. 1,217,867 for the year ended on that date as considered in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. : ,

(b) We did hot audit the financial statements of an associate whose financial statements reflect the
Group's share of loss of Rs.13,804 for the year ended on 31% March, 2010.
These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries
and an associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

. We'report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance

with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 {Consolidated Financial Statements) and Accounting
Standard 23 {Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements) as notified
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

. Based on our audit and on consideration of the separate audit reports on the individual financial

statements of the Company, its aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{i) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31¢ March, 2010;

{ii) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Group for the year ended
on that date; and

(i} in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year
ended on that date. .

for DELOITI’E HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Registration No 0080725)

Place: Bangalore © S.SUNDARESAN

Date : 22™ May, 2010 Partner _
{Membetrship No. 25776)
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iy R
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS§ AT 318T MARCH 2010
Sch
No As at 31/03/2010 As at 31/03/2009
. Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs.
I SOURCES OF FUNDS
1. Share holders' Funds:
&. Share Capital 1 30,000,000 30,000,000
b. Reserves and Surplus 2 347,891,589 274,346,547
377,891,589 304,346,547
2. Minority Interest 6,027,414 3.986,495
3, Loan Funds 3 221,547,847 420,904,068
4, Deferred Tax Liability(Net) Note-B 8 18,544,050 20,434,794
Totat 624,010,900 749,671,904
N APPLICATION OF FUNDS
1. Fixed Assets 4
a. Gross Block 478,239,136 481,749,912
b. Less: Accumulated Depreciation/ Tmpairment 197,699,275 175,058,63%
280,539,861 306,691,273
¢. Capital Work in Progress 4,463,361 5,692,707
- 285,003,222 312,383,930
2. Goodwill arising on consolidation 1,619,452 1,619,452
3. Invesiment 5 34,024,014 31,244,804
4. Current Assets, Loans and Advances: _ 6
a} Inventories 199,047,794 202,315,892
b) Sundry Debtors 392,231,083 344,393,965
¢} Cash and Bank Balances 26,393,742 26,374,945
o) Loans and Advances 51,317,844 51,104,754
668,990,463 624,189,556
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions 7
a) Liabilities 330,606,697 214,369,223
b} Provisions 35,028,862 13,093,955
365,635,559 227,463,178
303,354,904 396,726,378
5. Miscellaneous Expenditure 8 9,308 7,697,290
Total 524,010,900 749,671,904
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 13 .
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance sheet
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on: behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants
S. Sundaresan R. Srinivasan V. Balaji Bhat . C P Rangachar
Partner Director Director Managing Direcior
Place: Banga]uré H M Narasinga Rao
Bate 1 22nd May, 2010 Chief Financial Officer
S )/
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a [ ™
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2010
SCHNO CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Rs Rs
INCOME
Gross Sales 1,302,750,201 1,174,670,836
Less: Excise Duty 102,333,250 129,688,319
Net Sales 1,200,416,951 1,044,982,517
Other Income 9 23,104,218 21,801,896
1,223,521,169 1,066,784,413
EXPENDITURE
Raw Materials, Components and Stores consumed 10 568,614,310 505,339,305
(Ingrease)/ Decrease in Stock 11 (10,385,345) 521,976
Manufacturing, Administration, selling and other expenses 12 493,269,856 477,043,022
Tnterest ’ 29,483,318 39,726,993
Depreciation / Amortisation 28,000,961 27,074,612
1,108,983,600 1,049,705,908
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX 114,537,569 17,078,505
Provision for Taxation-
Current tax 37,135,000 2,500,000
MAT credit entitlement - (1,400,000)
Deferred 1ax (1,890,744) 6,042,368
Fringe Benefit Tax ) : 6520 3,380,037 | .
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST / EQUITY
IN EARNINGS OF ASSOCIATE 79,292,693 6,556,100
Less; Minority Interest (728,919} (795,292)
Add: Equity in earnings of Associates 3,727,018 4,146,750
82,290,792 9,907,558
Add: Surpius Brought Forward
from previous year 241,493,703 232,586,145
Amount available for appropriation 323,784,495 242,493,703
Appropriations: ’
General Reserve 7,000,000 1,000,000
Proposed Dividend 7,500,000
Tax on Dividend 1,245,750
Surplus Carried forward 308,038,745 241,493,703
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (Face value of equity share of Rs. 10/- each) 2743 3.30
Aggregate number of shares used for
Computing Basic & Diluted EPS 3,000,000 3,000,000
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 13
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss account.
In terms of our report altached
For Deloltte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants
S. Sundaresan R. Srinivasan V. Balaji Bhat C. P, Rangachar
Partier Director Director Managing Director
Place : Bangalore H M Narasinga Rao
Date ; 22nd May, 2010 Chief Financial Officer
N W
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i CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2010 R
Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March '10 31st March 09
A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rs. Rs.
NET PROFITS BEFORE TAX 114,537,569 17,078,505

ADJUSTMENTS FOR:

DEPRECIATION 28,000,961 27,074,612
LLOSS ON SALE / SCRAP OF ASSETS 1,913,515 1,300,038
INTEREST EXPENSE 29,483,318 39,726,993
BANK CHARGES - (221,038)
PRELIMNARY & PRE OPERATIVE WRITTEN OFF 4,652 4,652
PROFIT ON SALE LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (2,713,797} -
AMORTISATION OF TERMINATION BENEFITS - VRS 7,683,328 7.683.335
BAD DEBTS WRITTEN OFF : 4,604,464 4,420,403
PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS (NET) 2,749,944 (398,728
PROVISION FOR QUTSTANDING DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS - (10,994,584)
PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL ADVANCES 2,035,135 -
UNREALISED EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE (NET) (131,090) . (1,966,694)
INTEREST INCOME (1,250,209) (1,013,048}
DIVIDEND INCOME (7,500 (7,500}

OFERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 186,910,290 82,686,946
ADJUSTMENTS FOR (INCREASE)Y DECREASE IN:
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ' {59,722,134) 38,367,821
LOANS AND ADVANCES 5,283,551 -

INYENTORIES . . 3,268,008 15,233,794
TRADE PAYABLES & PROVISIONS 128,801,637 ’ (70.264.771)
INCREASE IN CASH CREDIT (689,579) -

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS: . 263,851,863 66,023,790

INTEREST PAID 23,331
DIRECT TAX PAID . 33,275,392 19,474,747
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 230,553,140 46,549,043

B.CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTLVITIES:

DIVIDEND INCOME 7,500 7,500
PURCHASE OF FIXED ASSETS (25,522,761) (69,030,187)
SALE OF FIXED ASSETS : 23,389,043 2,305,343
PURCHASE OF INVESTMENTS - 1,000,000
PROCEEDS TOWARDS/REFUND AGAINST ADVANCE FOR INVESTMENTS - 4,100,000
INTEREST RECEIVED ' 1,250,209 1,003,048
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,276,009) (60,604,296)

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PROCEEDS FROM BORROWINGS ) © 131,137,367 267,213,356
- REPAYMENT OF BORROWINGS v (330,344.661) 213.910,260)
DIVIDEND PAID ' . (29,126) (7,323,194)
DIVIDEND TAX PAID } - (1,274,625
iNTEREST PAID (29,985.835)/ (39,204,890)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (229,222 .255) 4,500,387
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 54,876 (9,554,866)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING BALANCE) 26,374,945 35,834,914
ADD/LESS) : UNREASLISED EXCHANGE (GAIN) / LOSS 414,672 509,569
’ 26,789,617 36,344,483
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING BALANCE) 26,393,742 26,374,945
ADD/(LESS): UNREALISED EXCHANGE (GAINYLOSS 450,75t 414,672
26,844,493 26,789,617
ISignificant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts i3
1. The schedule referred to above form an integral part of the cash ftow statement. n
2. Cash flow statement has been prepared wnder the “Indirect Method™ as set out in the Accounting Standard -3 on cash flow.
3. Cash atid Cash equivaleats include balances with Scheduled Banks on dividend account Rs. 725,185/ (Rs. 754,311/-) and balance in
|Margin money deposit account of Rs. 2,944,212/~ (Rs. 2,912,020 )which are available for restricted use by the Company.)
4. The figures for the previous year have been regrouped / recast, where necessary to conform te the current year classification.
3. This is the cash flow referred to jn our report of even date,
In terms of our report attached :
For Deloitte Haskins & Sclis For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants
8. Sundaresan R. Srinivasan V. Balaji Bhat C. P. Rangachar
Partner Ditector Director Managing Director
Place : Bangalore ' H M Narasinga Rao
Brate : 22nd May,2010 » Chief Financial Officer J
ST T ST T - S
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4 N
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES
SHARE CAPITAL SCHEDULE 1
As at 31/83/2010 As at 31/03/2009
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
AUTHORISED
6,000,000 (6,000,000) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/~ each 60,000,000 60,000,000
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
3,000,000 {3,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/
each fully paid up 30,000,000 30,000,000
Total 30,000,000 30,000,000
RESERVES AND SURPLUS SCHEDULE 2
As at 31/03/2010 As at 31/03/2009
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Capital Reserve
Arising on account of consolidation of Subsidiary 1,534,580 1,534,580
Arising from invesiment in Associate 2,060,429 2,060,429
General Reserve
As per Last Balance Sheet 29,257,835 28,257,835
Add ; Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 7,000,000 36,257,835 1,000,000 29,257,835
Surplus as shown in the Profit & Loss Account 308,038,745 241,493,703
Total 347,891,589 274,346,547
LOAN FLINDS SCHEDULE 3
As at 31/03/2010 As at 31/03/2009
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
SECURED LLOANS:
Term Loan
From Bank 126,793,227 162,757,494,
From Others 2,279,490 4,129,692,
Cash Credit Account- From Bank 13,665,583 113,259,719
Warking Capital Demand Loan-From Bank 46,243,565 102,839,495
Under Hire Purchase Scheme-From Others : - 251,101
188,981,865 383,237,501
UNSECURED LOANS:
Other Loan from Bank 12,565,982 37,500,000
Short Temn Loan from Bank 20,000,000 32,565.982 166.567 37,666,567
Total 221,547,847 420,904,068
N W
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)
{ CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES
INVESTMENTS i SCHEDULE §
As at 31/03/2010. j As at 31/03/2009
Rs. s, Rs. : "Rs.
Sai India Limited . . . : ' T "
360,000 (360,000) Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10/~ each of ' 33,617,818 31,194,804
Sal India Limited. (160,000 equity shares of fis. 10/- each
received as bonus shares)
Beourton Consulting India Pyt Ltd . 356,196 . -
37,000(Nil}Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/~each . -
The Shamrao Vittal Co-operative Bank Ltd
2,000 Fully paid equily shares of Rs 25/- each 50,000 50,000
. Total 34,024,014 31,244,804
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES : SCHEDULE S
As at 31/03/2010¢ Ag at 31/03/2009
Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs.
a) INVENTORIES: ] i
Tools 5,708,195 : 9,422,616
Raw Matetials & Components 118,099,825 . 129,165,754
Woark in Progress 47,008,961 ‘ 41,842,286
Finished Goods 25,230,698 20,012,028
.Raw Material in transit 3,000,115 : 1,873,208
) ‘Sub-Total 196,047,794 202,315,892
b) SUNDRY DEBTORS )
Unsecwed deblors 307,783,917 347,196,854
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 5,552,834 : 2,802,889
Sub-Total 392,231,083 344,393,965
H & BA| LAN H .
Cash On Hand 495,230 7 372,152
Balances with Scheduled Banks: . ’
On Current Account . 20,289,413 20,396,760
On Margin Money Depaosit Account 2,944,212 2,012,020
On Unctaimed Dividend . | 726,185 ' . T 754,311
Fixed deposits 1,939,702 . 1,939,702
Sub-Total 26,393,742 26,374,945
d} LOANS & ADVANCES -
Unsecured and considered geood:
Advances recoverable in cash orin kind or for . .
value to be received . . 31,069,126 34,484,356
Less Provision for doubtful Advances . 2,035,135 29,033,991 - ' + 34,484 398
.Due from Subsidiaries ’ -
Advance for Investment (Shares are yet to be allotted) - 370,000
Daposit with Excise Authorities 1,886,352 1,666,597 |- .
Deposit Others - ’ :8,089,733 9,976,085 10,300,443 12,337,040

income Tax . o .

Advance Tax (Net) C 11,154,197 4,283,318
Fringe Benefit Tax ) ) Co-
Advance Tax (Net) 1,153,574 -

_ 51,317,844 51,104,754
Total ) 668,990,463 624,189,556
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS SCHEDULE 7
. As at 31/03/2010 As at 31/03/200%
: Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs.
a) CURRENT L IABILITIES :
' Sundry Creditors - ] .
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises : . 4,930,698 ’ . -

Bues to Others 314,627,005 207,328,773
Other Statutoiy Liabilities 8,372,185 5,640,425
Due to Directors 1,949,317 119,866
Unclaimed Dividend 725,185 754,311
Interest acerued but not due on loans 2,337 £25 848

330,606,697 214,369,223
b} PROVISIONS:
Income Tax
Provisions {Net) 12,144,397 ’ -
Fringe Benefit Tax
Provisions {Net) 295,340 484,451
Gratuity 3,095,411 1,362,242
Leave Satary 10,747,964 11,247 262
Proposed Dividend 7,500,000 -
Tax on Proposed Dividend 1,245 750 - .
8,745,750
) 35,028,862 13,093,955
Total 365,635,559 227,463,178
e e —— =
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES
. . SCHEDULE 8
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE ’ .
(To the extent not written off or adjusted}
As at 31/03/2010 As at 31/03/2009
Rs. . As. Rs, Rs.
Voluntary Retirement scheme - 7.683,330
Preliminary expenses 9,308 13,960
Total 9,308 7,697,290
OTHER INCOME SCHEDULE 9
Current year Previous year
Rs. As. Rs. Rs.
OTHER INGOME
Interast Income on Margin Money Deposit and others
(Tax deducted at source Rs.20,409/-(Rs.38,9795) 1,250,209 1,013,048
Training and Other Services rendered 4,788,999 5,449,868
Rant raceived - 180,000
Miscellaneous Receipts 2,196,288 1,688,192
Incomel{iLoss) from sale of Fixed Asset - 88,538
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back 1,851,884 1,279,730
Bad debts written off realised 120,012
Liabilities no longer required written back 1,012,947 817,402
Derivative Provision writeback - 10,994,584
Exchange gain {Net) 2,162,582 283,034
Profit on sale of Investment in Subsidiary 2,718,797 -
Dividend Income 7,500 7,500
Profit on sale of Mobile Hydraulics Business 7,000,000 -
) Total 23,104,218 21,801,896
RAW MATERIALS, COMPQONENTS AND STORES CONSUMED SCHEDULE 10
Current year Previous year
Rs. Rs. Rs. . Rs,
Opening Stock 138,588,370 145,264,499
Add: Purchases 553,834,460 498,663,176
Total 692,422,830 €43,927,675
Less Cloging stock 123,808,020 138,568,370
Total 568,614,810 568,614,810 505,339,305
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN STOCKS SCHEDULE 11
Current year Previous year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Opening Stock .
Finished Goods 17,661,613 18,984,917
Excise Duty on Opening stock 2,330,415 4,873,673
Work in Process 41,842 286 38,517,700
61,854,314 62,376,290
Closing Stock .
Finished Goods . 21,582,419 17,681,613
Excise Duty on Closing stock 3,648,279 2,330,415
Work in Process 47,008,961 . 41,842 286 .
X 72,239,659 : 61,854 314
Total {10,385,345) 521,976
P/
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES

]

MANUFACTURING, AOMINISTRATION, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES

SCHEDULE 12

Current Year Pravious Year
As. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Salaries, Wages & Bonus (Includes provision for Leave Salary
Rs.1,375,614/{Rs.2,927,235/-) 139.660,703 140,337,236
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 12,148,712 13,865,507
Grau.pty to Emp!oyees [Including Rs. 4,549,962/- (Rs. Nil) 5,316,008 ° 1,491 426
pertaining to previous year]
Staff welfare Expenses 11,378,423 15,282,228
Voluntary Retirement scheme 7,683,328 7,683,335
Subcontract charges 118,306,281 100,382,606
Power and fuel 19,037,167 17,157,884
Rates and Taxes 3,261,483 4,142,252
Exgisa/Custom Duty 785,605 884,477
Exchange Loss’ 9,897,146
Rent. 7,879,091 7.872,936
Insurance 1,028,082 852,890
Repairs:
Machinary 11,809,577 1,214,732
Building 4,537,027 101,368
Others 3,458 810 14,155,647
19,846,414 15,471,747
Freight Transport & Other Charges 31,318,360 27,016,999
Sales Promotion Expenses 4,986,083 5,120,785
Selling Commission 17,961,341 6,725,104
Traveling Expenses 20,480,304 27,374,214
Vehicle Maintenance 5,285,408 5,398,550
Printing,Statienery,Postage and Telephones 8,934,638 10,196,996
Directors Sitting Fes 270,000 465,000
Commission to Directors cther than Managing Director 1,110,968 -
Provision for doubtiuf debts 4,601,828 1,578,465
Provision for doubtful advances - 2,035,135 -
Bad debts written off {net} 4,604,464 4,010,241
Bank charges 6,243,008 7,297,163
Legal and Professional charges 20,683,532 18,701,448
Loss on Asset sold / scrapped 1,813,515 1,167 538
Preliminary Expenses Written-Off 4,652 4,652
Misceilaneous Expenses 16,507,325 26,624,196
Total 493,269,856 477,043,022
N )
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Schedule 13

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended

N

~ 31st March 2010

A ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION :

b),

Preparation of Accounts

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 “Con-
solidated Financial Statements” and Accounting Standard 23 - “Accounting for Investment. in Associ-
ates in Consolidated Financial Statements” and comply with the relevant provisions of The Compa-

nies Act, 1956.

Principles' of Cénsolidation

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Yuken India Ltd (the
Holding Company)} and its Subsidiaries and Associates, together referred to as “the Group”. The
Financial Statements of the entities in the Group used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same

reporting date as of the Holding Company, i.e. March 31, 2010.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a. The Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been consolidated :
on a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expense. The
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and. unrealized profits or losses have been elimi-

nated fully.

b. The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of
the equity of the subsidiary companies, at the dates on which the investrhents in the subsidiary
companies were made, is recognized as ‘goodwill’, being an asset in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Where the share of the equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of invest-
ment is in excess of cost of investment of the Company, it is recognized as ‘Capital Reserve’ and

shown under the head ‘Reserves & Surplus’.

c. Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity
attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Com-
pany in the subsidiary companies and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent

to the dates of investments as stated above,

d. Investment in Associates has been accounted under the equity method as per Accounting
Standard -28, Accounting for investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements.
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v )
i ¢} Companies included in Consofidation
Country of Ownership Proportion
Incorporation 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
i. - Subsidiary
Yuflow Engineering Pvt. Ltd INDIA 100% 100%
Coretec Engineering India Pyvt, Ltd INDIA 77% 77%
Prism Hydraulics Pvt. Ltd INDIA 60%. 60%
Stiplas Engineering India Pvt. Ltd ‘ INDIA - 68%
ii. Associate L
Sai India Limited , INDIA 40% 40%
Bourton Consuiting (India) Pvt Ltd INDIA 30.83% . NiL

d) The Consolidated Financial Statements include assets of Rs. Nil {Rs.8,371,878/), revenue of Rs. Nil
{Rs.684,750/-} and cash flows of Rs.Nil (Rs.16,497/-) as at March 31, 2010 included on the basis of
un-audited financial statements in respect of Sriplas Engineering India Pvi. Ltd.

2. INCOME/EXPENDITURE: :

All Income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis,

3. FIXEDASSETS:

Tangible Assels

a) Fixed Assets are capitalised at cost inclusive of taxes, incidental gxpenses on fre:ght instaliation etc.
and interest on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition of fixed assets for the period up to the date

on which such asset is put to use.

b) Fixed Assets taken on financial lease prior to April 15, 2001 are not capitalised and lease rentals are
absorbed in the Profit and Loss Account without reference to useful life of the Asset, while Assets

acquired under Hire Purchase are capitalised.

¢} Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act
1956, under Straight Line Method. Depreciation on additions during the year is on pro-rata basis,
based on the days the assets are put to use. Asset costing less than Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated

~ during the year.
d) In Sai India Limited, an Associate, depreciation is provided on Written Down Value Method.
| lntanglble Asset
a) Technical Know how fee is amortized over a period of 6 years.

b) Cost of License and Implementation of Enterprise Resource Planning software is amortized over the

estimated useful life of 5 years.

¢) Expenses incurred on research and developments are charged to revenue in the same year. Fixed

assets purchased for research and development purposes are capitalized and depreciated as per

the Company’s policy. )i
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Impairment

Consideration is given at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment of the carrying amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If any indication exists, an impairment

loss is recognized when the carrying amount exceeds greater of net selling price and value in 'use.

4. INVESTMENTS:

Investments which are long term in nature are stated at cost and provision for diminution in value is

made to recognize a loss, other than temporary, in the value of investments.
5. INVENTORIES:
Inventories are valued as follows

(i) a) Raw Materials & Components } At lower of cost on Weighted Moving Average value
and net realizable value

(i) a) Material in transit } At lower of cost and net realizable value
b) Work in Process *

(i) Finished Goods * At lower of cost and net realizable value

(iv) Tools At lower of cost and net realizable value

(* Cost includes cost of material, direct labour, and cther applicable overheads).
Raw material and components, are valued on First in First out basis in all the Subsidiary Companies.
6. CASHFLOW:

Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set cut in the Accounting Stan-

dard -3 on cash flow statements.
7. FOREIGNCURRENCY TRANSACTION:

Transactions in Foreign Currency are accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of Transaction.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and forward exchange contracts outstanding as at the
end of the year are re-stated at year end rates. The loss or gain arising on.restatement / settlement is

adjusted to the Profit and Loss account.

In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate
and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward

contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

8.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Short Term Employee Benefits :

Short term employee benefits including accumulated compensated absences determinad as per Company’s
policy/scheme are recognized as expenses based on expected obligation on undiscounted basis.

L B . . )
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Long Term Employee Benefits :

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has Defined Contribution plans for post employment benefits namely Provident Fund and
Superannuation Fund. Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government adminis-

tered provident fund on behalf of its employees and has no further obligation beyond making its contribution,

The Superannuation Fund constitutes an insured benefit, which is classified as a defined contribution
plan as the Company makes contributions to an insurance company and has no further obligation

beyond making the payment to the insurance company.

The Company makes contributions to state plans namely Employee’s State Insurance Fund and
Employee’s Pension Scheme 1995 and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them.

The Company’s contributions to the above funds are charged to revenue every year.
Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a. Defined Benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees. The liability for the
defined benefit plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the year end.
- Gratuity Fund is recognized by the income tax authorities and is administered thfough trustees. The
Company has taken a group gratuity policy with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited and is funded.

Provision for fong term compensated absence has been made on the basis of an actuarial valuation at

the year end.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial

assumptions are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account as income or expense. -
Termination Benefits:

Compensation paid / payable to employees who have opted for retirement under the Voluntary Retire-
ment Scheme (VRS) of the Company is amortized over a period of 36 months or up to the financial year
ending 31st March, 2010, whichever is earlier. '

Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods when significant risks and rewards of ownership are consid-
ered to be transferred, Sales returns are recoghized as and when ascertained and are reduced from the

sales turnover of the year. Sales are inclusive of excise duty and are net of Sales Tax.
Revenue from Hydraulic Training program is recognized on completion of the Training program.
10. BORROWING COST: -

Borrowing costs other than that attributable to a qualifying asset are expensed as and when incurred.
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12.

13.

14.

LEASES:

The Company generally has cancelable operating leases. Lease rentals on assets under operating

fease is charged off to the Profit and Loss account for the year.
INCOME TAX ;
Current Tax:

Current tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income - tax Act, 1961 .Mini-
mum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is

convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax.

Deferred Tax :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rate which have been enacted or substan-
tively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized timing differ-
ences being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one penod

and as capable of reversing in cne or more subsequent penods

Deferred Tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty of their realiza-
tion. Where there is unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward losses, deferred tax asset is recog-

nized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of such asset.

Fringe benefit Tax:

Fringe benefit tax is accounted for, based on the estimated value of fringe benefits for the year as per the

related provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961,
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES :

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is
probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date These are rewewed

al each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized byt are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither

recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements,

PRIOR PERIOD AND EXTRAORDINARY [TEMS :

Prior period and extracrdinary items, and changes in accountlng policies, having a materla! lmpact on

the financial affairs of the Company are disclosed separately.

=)

Ny
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f B. NOTES ON ACCQUNTS
1. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES :
Estimated amount of contracts remaining. to be executed on capital account inet of advances Rs.
1,609,838/~ (Rs. 986,327/-).] and not provided for is Rs.1,599,196/- (Rs. 1,371,791/-).
Particulars - 31 March 2010 31¢ March 2009
Sales Tax Liabiiity under Dispute - Rs. 14,878
Contingent Liability in' Associate Companies to the extent of holding:
Particulars 31% March 2010 31¢ March 2009
letter of credit opened on behalf of the company Rs. 1,511,589 Rs. 675,791
by Bankers
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be As. 3,228,883 Rs.11,340,669 -
executed on capita'l account and not provided for
2. Foreign Currency Exposure :
a) Forward Exchange Contracts, which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes, but for
hedge purposes, to establish the amount of reporting currency required or available at the settlement
:A date of certain payables and receivables, outstanding as at the year end are given below:
h No of Nature of Amount Cross Amount (Rs)
A Contracts | Hedge Currency (usnm) Cur}'ency
Buy/Sell
. ‘ 1 ) Buy usD 3,470,000 Rupees 156,392,900
{1) Buy uspo (2,000,000) Rupees (101,300,300)
1 ‘Buy uso 172,616 Rupees 7,779,760
{-) {-) ) (228,893) Rupees {11,593,430)
b} Foreign Currency Exposure asat31« March ,2010, that have not been hedged by a derivative
. Instrument or other wise:
Particulars Amount (RS) Amount (Foreign Currency)
Due From . 7
- Debtors against Export of Goods ' 'Rs.6,990,805 USD 158,637
.(Rs.9,305,482) {(USD 183,666)
Rs. 12,604 GBP 188
{Rs. 2,718,843) (GBP 36,821)
-
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Rs.1,270,105

Euro 20,980

‘ (Rs.1,993,284)

(Rs.899,066)

(Euro 28,027)

{Yen 1,736,980)

7 Due to

a) Secured loan . -
( Rs. 14,038,571)

{ USD 277,168)

b} Interest on Secured Loan : : ~Rs.896,169
' ' (Rs.779,775)

USD 19661
(USD 15,395)

c) Creditors against Import of goods .| - Res. 38,469,260
and services (inclusive for Capital | Rs,(14,21 8,265)

goods) - ) Rs.5,803,164
: ' (Rs.587,186)

Rs 857,296
(Rs.91,911)

USD 853,545
(USD 280,716)
YEN 11,933,300 -

(YEN 1,134,440)

EURO 14,161
(EURO 1,338)

(SGD 2,5986)

(Rs 87,146)

‘3. EMPLOYEEBENEFITS:

The company has classified vanous benefits provided to employees as under:-

I Defined Contrlbut:on Plans

a. Provident Fund
b. Superar)nuation Fund
c. ,Stete Defined Contribution Plans

i. Employers’ Contribution to. Employee’s State Insurance

i Emp[oyers Contribution to Employees Pensmn Scheme 1995;

The Company has recogmzed the followmg amount in the Profit and Loss Account

. -Amount As.
Particulars h | * 31 March 2010 | 31+ March 2009
| Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund® - 4,488,880 _ 4,893,902 '
‘ _Emetoyere’.Coniributien to S,uperannuation Fund® - o 4,290,671 50,29,590
Emp[oyers_'- Contribution to Emp__loyee’e State insurance™ 555,746 _ 730,348
Employers’ Contribution to Ehp[byee’s Pension Scheme 1995*. 2,140,157 " 2,526,400

© * Included m C'onfributioh to provident end other-funds (Refer Schedute. 12)

_
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Benefits Paid

.. {3,831,707)

{7
(!I Defined Benefit Plan-
a) Contribution to Gratuity Fund :
In accordance with Accounting Standard 15 actuarial valuation has been carried out at Projected Unit
Credit method in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan of Gratuity based on the foliowing éssumptions.
Particulars 31% March 2010 | 31 March 2009 '
Discount Rate '8.15% p. a 7.30% p.a
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.50% p.a * 7.50% p.a.
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% p.a - 5.00% p.a.
Expected Averége remaining working lives of the employees | 10.88 11.69
{Years)
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuanal valuatron take account of |nﬂat|on,'
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such.as supply and demand in the employment market.
A) Change in Present Value of Obllgatlon - Amountin Rs.
' ~Description . 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
Ope'ning Present Value of Obligation 11,761,680 15,108,152
Current Service Cost 1,076,636 918,127
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 912,143 . 1,288,471
Benefits Paid (5,606,597) 1 (3,831,707)
Net Actuarial Losses / {Gains) Recognized in Year 3,867,705 (i,721,363)
Past Service Cost - -
Losses / (Gains) on “Curtailments & Settlements” - -
‘ L | Closing Present Value of Obligations 12,011 ,567 11,761,680
B) Change in the Fair Value of Assets : Amount in Rs.
Description ‘ 31 March 2010 | 31% March 2009
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets | 11,085,671 12,968,271
. Expected Return on Plan Assets 870,935 1,017,431
Actuarial Gains / {Losses) 29,462 (1,248,332)
Assels Distributed on Settlements - -
Contributions by Employer 3,500,000 2,150,008
Assets Acquired due to Acquisition - ' -
Exchange Difference on Foreign Plans o - -
(5,606,597)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets

9,849,471 .

11,055,671

] .
.
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C) Beconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of plan assets :

Arhount in Rs.

31t March 2010

31 March 2009

D) Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss Account :

Description
Cl‘osing Present Value of Funded Obligations (12,011,567) - (11,761,680}
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 9,849,471 11,055,671
Closing Value of Unfunded Obligations (2,162,096) (7086,009)
Unrecognized Actuarial (gains) / losses - -
Unfunded Net Asset / {Liability) reéognized in Balance Sheet (2,162,096) (706,009)

AmountinRs. .

Total Expense’s recognized in the Profit & Loss Account

4,956,087

Deécfibtion 31 March 2010 31* March 2009
Current Service Cost 1,076,636 918,127
Past Service Cost - -
Interest Cost 912,143 1,288,471
Expected Return on Plan Assets e (870,935} (1,017,431)
Actuarial Losses / (G};m) 7 3,838,243 | (473,031)
Losses / (Gains) on “Curtailments. & Settlements” - -

716,136

E} Major cateQOriéé of-Plan Assels as a percentaqé of total Plan Assets

31° March 2010

- 31 March 2009

Pescription
Corporate Bonds 50% 50%
.Equity Shares of listad Companies 50%

50%

b} Leave Encashment salary
Assumptions at the Valﬁa‘tion Date:

Description

31t March 2010

31° March 2009

Discount Rate

8.15% p.a.

7.30% p.a.

|- Salary Escalation Rate

5.00% p.a.

5.00% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Amountin Rs.

=)

Description 31 March 2010 31% March 2009
Charge in the Profit & Loss account 1,375,614 2,817,085
Amount paid during the vear 1,841,312 3,076,151
Liability as at yea-r end 10,565,564 11,031,262

Employee Benefits of Subsidiary companies :

The Consolidated financial statements include Rs. 933 :315/-(Rs. 656,233/-) towards provision for gratuity
and Rs.182,400/-(Rs. 216,000/-) towards provision for leave salary provided by the subsidiary companies.
The subsidiary companies have not provided the disclosures enumerated in AS 15 ~ Employee Benefits,

as the same is not material.

4.A SEGMENT REPORT:

The company’s predominant risks and returns are from the segment of Motion, Control & power transmis-
sion business, which constituted over 95% of the company's revenues for the reporting period. Thus the
segment revenue, segment result, total carrying amount of segment assets, total amount of segment liabilities,
total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, the total amount of expense incurred for depreciation and
amortization during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2010
and as on that date. Since this being a single busrness and India the only major geographical segment,
constituting over 95% of the companys revenues for the repomng period, the segment information as per

Accounting Standard 17, “Segment Reporting”, is not required to be disclosed.

4B, SALE OF MOBILE HYDRAULICS BUSINESS :

The Company has entered into a shareholders’ agreement déted Jahué‘ry 20, 2010 with a party, far sale of
its mobile hydraulics business. As a: consideration for this transfer the Company would be receiving a total
amount of Rs.9,413,300/- out of which Rs.7,000,000/- is towards transfer of Know-how, IP rights,customer /
vendor contracts ete., (Good wnl!) and balance of Rs.2,413,300/- towards book value of fixed assets sold. The
total purchase consideration receivable has been shown under “Sundry Debtors” in schedule - 6 and the
amount receivable towards good will has been shown under “Other income” in schedule - 9 of the Fnancial
statements. This amount of receivable shail be settied by way of allotment of 941,330 shares at par vaiue of
Rs.10/- each.

The mobile hydraulics business does not constitute a major line of business of the Company.
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6. LEASES:

a} The Company has entered into various hire purchase transactions for the acquisition of vehicle. Total
minimum hire purchase payments as at the balance sheet date amounted toRs. Nil {Rs. 251,101/}
(excluding interest). The total of minimum lease payments and their present

value ouistanding at the batance sheet date are as below:

' Amount in Rs.
Due ' . Total Minimum : Present Value of
Lease Payments Interest Minimum Lease
outstanding as Payments
at 31.03.2010
Within one year from the date of the \ - - -
Balance sheet (253,694) {2,593) {251,101}
Due in a period between one year - - : -
to five year : -) NG| {-)
Due after five years | - ‘ - -
{-) ) )
Total - : -
(253,694) (2,593) (251,101)

b) The company has taken a rental pfemises oh a operaﬁonal lease. The lease rent paid has
beencharged to the profit and loss account. The break up of total minimum lease rent due as on
31.03.2010 is as foliows ’ ) Amount in Rs.
Particulars . _ 31 March 2010 '31% March 2009

Not later than one year o 990,135 837,574
Later than one year but not later than 5 years . 5,473,065 ' 3,883,908
_Later than 5 years : ' : 13,835,503 2,938,680
.€) The Company has entered into fease agreements for vehicles and office facilities which are cancel-
lable. The lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss account for the year against
these agreements is Rs.6040,039/-(Rs.5,652,526/-) which has been grouped under ‘Rent’ under
* Schedule-12. There are no contingent rents payable. ' '
L )
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7. EABNINGPERSHARE:

1

, - AmountinRs.

..31% March 2010 | 31% March 2009
| Profit after taxation ) 82,290,792 Rs. 9,907,558
'Weighted number of Equity shares (®) 3,000,000 3,000,000
Face Value of Share Rs.10 Rs.10
Basic-& Diluted Earnings Per (AB) Hs.27.43 Rs.3.30

'8. DEFEBREDTAX

Tax provision has been made in accordance with the requirements under the Accounting Standard 22 .

“Accounting for Taxes on Income” as detailed below:”

Amountin Rs.

" Description Deferred tax Current year Deferred tax (asset) f
- (asset)/liability { charge / (credit) fliabilityas at .
as at 01.04.09 © 31.03.10
Difference between book & Tax Depreciation | 31,225,046 - (3,359,528) 27,865,518
Provision for Doubtful debts and advances 2 (1,499,540) (1,499,540)
Provision for Employee benefits and others - (6,099,632) +(1,722,2986) (7,821,928}
Unabsorbed depreciation (4,690,620) 4,690,620 -
Net 20,434,794 (1,890,744) 18,544,050

Ny N A A e

|l o. INTERESTPAID COMPRISESOE ;-

~ AmountinRs.

Description ~ 31% March 2010 3% March 2009
“On Fixed loans - 20,186,980 22,248,493
On others 9,296,338 17,478,500 .
Total 29,483,318 39,726,993
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1l 10. MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSES INCLUDES :
‘Auditers remuneration
“‘a. ‘Remuneration to the auditors of the Company:
‘ AmountinRs. -
D_e_scription: 31% March 2010 31 March 2009
Audit fees 500,000 500,000
Payh*ie_nts for other services 500,000 450,000
Qut of pocket Expenses inclusive of Service Tax . 117,722 129,264
Total 1,117,722 1,079,264
b. Remuneration to the auditors of the subsidiaries:
Amountin Rs.
Description . 31% March 2010 31 March 2009
Audit fees . 156,803 152,070
Payment for othef services 43,675 35,000
Expenses ‘ - 24,334
Total 200,478 211,404
11. Disclosure of information relating to Subsidiary Companies (In pursuant o letter from Ministry of
' Corporate affairs under sub section 8 of section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956.
Amount in Rs
~Description Coretec . Yuftow Engineering PrismHydraulics
(India} Pvt Ltd PvtLtd Engineering Pvt Ltd
1731/03/10 | '31/03/09 |T 81/03/10 | 31/03/09 31/03/10 31/03/09
Capital 8,196,000 { 1,549,000 }10,000,000 (10,000,000 375,000 375,000
Reserves and Surplus 2.688,432 | 6,066.110 113,644,815| 8,658,753 9,317,560.| 8,225122 |:
Total Assets 11,072,171 | 9,646,850 [34,890,577 129,794,701 112,616,577 | 12,756,144
‘[ “1otat Liabilities 11,072,171 | 9,646,850 |34,890,677 129,794,701 [12,616,577 | 12,756,144
[-_)t;eta{ilhs'of_.lh've'slrﬁéhfm : S A G j : ‘A '7' B S
Turmover 41,557,386 |47,350,025 |82,480,026 |64,449 543 26,068,980 | 20,382,410
Profit before taxation | 1,782,322 | 2,814,014 | 6,345,245 | (398,996)] 1,364,438 | 1,048,793
Provision for Taxation - © 513,000 { 1,476,000 § 1,359,183 | - 256,845 272,000 8,857
Profitafter Tax 1,269,322 | 11,338,014 | 4,986,062 | (655,841)| 1,002,438 | 1,058,650
(Dividend paid)
Ao
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The above information is given pursuant to the requirement of granting exemption under sub section(8)

of Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956. The information is prepared by the management and has not

been subjected to audit.

12. Figures relating to subsidiary companies have been reclassified where necessary to bring in line with
the holding company's financial statements

13. Figures relating to previous year has been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year
classification. Figures in brackets relate to previous year.

SIGNATURES TQ SCHEDULE1TO 13

For and on behaif of the Board

R Srinivasan V Balaji Bhat C.P.Rangachar

Director Director Managing Director

H M Narasinga Rao
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date : 22 May, 2010
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YUKEN INDIA LIMITED YUKEN

o

FORM OFPROXY

YUKEN INDIA LIMITED
P.B. No. 16, WHITEFIELD ROAD, WHITEFIELD, BANGALORE - 560 066

W oo svereserareossesraenssesssssanssrasssssesssosremestesssarssse OF coitiaiatnincrnecssinesins being a member / members of the

above named Company, hereby appoint.......ienenn, Of et ivivreennrree et srner e or failing him

Signature

Note : 1. The instrument of proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty eight hours before the, time for holding the meeting.

2. Share holders intending to require information about accounts to be explained in the
meeting are requested to inform the company atleast 15 days in advance of the Annual
General Meeting.

3. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the Annual General
Meeting. Due to the prohibitive cost, no copies will be distributed at the Meeting.

YUKEN INDIA LIMITED
PB. No. 16, WHITEFIELD ROAD, WHITEFIELD, BANGALORE - 560 066
ATTENDANCE SLIP
L.F. No, No. of Shares held
Mr./Mrs./Miss

| certify | am a registered Shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 34" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 3* September
2010 at 10.00 A.M. at Woodlands Hotel(P) Ltd..# 5 Raja Ram Mohan Roy Road, Bangalore - 560 025.

Signature

Note : 1) Sharsholders / Proxy holders are requested to bring the Attendance Slips when they come to
meeting and handover the same at the entrance after affixing their signature. Joint
shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slips at the entrance.

2) Please Complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.
3) No additional/duplicate Attendance Slip will be issued at the Meeting Hall..

f * Strike out whichever is not applicable







